
 

 
Published and despatched by democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk on Monday, 1 March 2021.  

 01476 406080 
Karen Bradford, Chief Executive 

www.southkesteven.gov.uk  
 

 

     

 

 
 

Tuesday, 9 March 2021 at 10.00 am 
Virtual meeting - This meeting is being held remotely using 

Skype for Business 
 

 
Committee 
Members: 

 
Councillor Judy Stevens (Chairman) 
Councillor Hilary Westropp (Vice-Chairman) 
 
Councillor Paul Fellows, Councillor Virginia Moran, Councillor Susan Sandall, Councillor 
Mrs Judy Smith and Councillor Jill Thomas 

 
 

 
Invited 
Cabinet 

Members 

 
Councillor Kelham Cooke, the Leader of the Council 
Councillor Barry Dobson, the Deputy Leader of the Council  
Councillor Annie Mason, the Cabinet Member for Communities 
Councillor Dr Peter Moseley, the Cabinet Member for Commercial and Operations  
Councillor Robert Reid, the Cabinet Member for Housing and Planning 
Councillor Adam Stokes, the Cabinet Member for Finance and Resources 
Councillor Rosemary Trollope-Bellew, the Cabinet Member for Culture and Visitor 
Economy 
 

 

Agenda 

  
Virtual Meeting - Joining Arrangements 

Councillors should access the meeting using the link in their calendar. 
 

Members of the press and public can gain access to the meeting by using the following link: 
 

Culture and Visitor Economy Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 9 March 2021 
 

Culture and Visitor 

Economy Overview 

and Scrutiny 

Committee 
 

https://meet.southkesteven.gov.uk/d3/V9MYBQS7


 

 

If you are using a smartphone or tablet it may be necessary to download the Skype for Business app 
before you can enter the meeting; please allow yourself time to do this. If you are using a laptop or 
desktop computer, you should be able to access the meeting via your web browser. 
 
When you follow the link to the meeting you will enter a virtual lobby; you will be invited into the 
meeting from the lobby just before the meeting begins. Members of the public should not use the 
Chat function in Skype for Business. This is for use by Councillors, who will use it to indicate that 
they would like to speak. 
 
If you have any questions about how to join the meeting, please e-mail 
democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk. 
 

1.   Comments from Members of the Public 
To receive comments or views from members of the public at the Committee’s 
discretion. 

 

   
2.   Register of attendance, membership and apologies for absence  

   
3.   Disclosure of Interests 

Members are asked to disclose any interests in matters for consideration at the 
meeting. 

 

   
4.   Action Notes from the meeting held on 5 January 2021 (Pages 3 - 9) 

   
5.   Updates from the previous meeting 

To note the status of actions raised at the previous meeting. 
(Pages 11 - 12) 

   
6.   Arts Pop Up 

Verbal presentation by a representative of the Stamford based Arts Pop Up, a 
non-profit contemporary arts organisation (Arts Pop Up), to brief Members on 
their past success, work through the pandemic and future plans. 

 

   
7.   Impact of Covid-19 to the Culture and Arts Community 

To receive a verbal update on impact to the culture and arts community due to 
Covid-19. 

 

   
8.   Marketing to support tourism 

A verbal presentation by the Visitor Economy Lead for InvestSK. 
 

   
9.   LeisureSK Ltd Performance Reporting 

Report of the Deputy Leader of the Council, providing an update on how the 
performance of LeisureSK Ltd will be assessed against the leisure 
management contract and to establish regular six-monthly reports to the 
Culture and Visitor Economy Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 

(Pages 13 - 58) 

   
10.   Corporate Plan Performance Indicators 

Report of the Leader of the Council, setting out the proposed dashboards for 
reporting the Corporate Plan Key Performance Indicators relevant to the 
Culture and Visitor Economy Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 

(Pages 59 - 69) 

   
11.   2020/2021 Work Programme (Pages 71 - 72) 

   
12.   Any other business which the Chairman, by reason of special 

circumstances decides is urgent 
 

   

mailto:democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk
https://artpopup.co.uk/


 

Meeting of the 
Culture and Visitor 
Economy Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee 
 
Tuesday, 5 January 2021, 10.00 am 

 

 

Meeting held virtually, via Skype 
 

 
Committee Members present  
 

Councillor Judy Stevens (Chairman) 
Councillor Hilary Westropp (Vice-Chairman) 
 
Councillor Paul Fellows 
Councillor Virginia Moran 
Councillor Susan Sandall 
Councillor Mrs Judy Smith 
Councillor Jill Thomas 
 

Other Members Present 
 

Councillor Ashley Baxter 
Councillor Louise Clack 
Councillor Phil Dilks 
Councillor Graham Jeal 
Councillor Anna Kelly 
Councillor Charmaine Morgan 
Councillor Ian Selby 
Councillor Jacky Smith 
Councillor Amanda Wheeler 
Councillor Mark Whittington 
Councillor Ray Wootten 

Cabinet Members 
 

Councillor Kelham Cooke, the Leader of the Council 
Councillor Annie Mason, the Cabinet Member for Communities 
Councillor Adam Stokes, the Cabinet Member for Finance and Resources 
Councillor Rosemary Trollope-Bellew, the Cabinet Member for Culture and Visitor 
Economy 
 
Officers 
 
Gary Smith (Strategic Director, Commercial and Operations) 
Shahin Ismail (Director of Law and Governance (Monitoring Officer)) 
Richard Wyles (Interim Director of Finance (Section 151 Officer))  
Ken Lyon (Assistant Chief Executive) 
Karen Whitfield (Head of Leisure) 
Michael Cross (Head of Arts and Culture) 
Dan Snowdon (Interim Head of Governance) 
Phil Jordan (Principal Planning Officer) 
Paul Stokes (Corporate Operations Lead) 
Shelley Thirkell (Acting Principal Democratic Officer) 
Ginny Beckett (Visitor Economy Officer)  
Susan Hislop (Democratic Officer) 
Mary Powell (Visitor Economy Lead, InvestSK Ltd) 
   

3

Agenda Item 4



 
 

 
73. Comments from Members of the Public 

 
No members of the public expressed a wish to speak. 
 

74. Register of attendance, membership and apologies for absence 
 
Following a register of attendance all Members were confirmed as present. 
 
Apologies were received from the Deputy Leader of the Council, Councillor 
Barry Dobson. 
 
Councillor Steptoe also submitted his apologies as one of the signatories of 
the Call-in, agenda item 6. 
 

75. Disclosure of Interests 
 
In response to questions raised by a Councillor, it was confirmed that all 
Members had declared membership of their political affiliation and that no 
Party Whip was in place. 
 
No interests were disclosed. 
 

76. Action Notes from the meeting held on 17 November 2020 
 
The Action Notes from the meeting held on 17 November 2020, were agreed 
as a correct record.  The Chairman noted that the Key Performance Indicators 
was now scheduled for the next meeting of the Committee, to be held on 
9 March 2021. 
 

77. Updates from the previous meeting 
 
Updates from the previous meeting were noted. 
 

78. Cabinet Member Decision 1 December 2020 - Public Realm 
Improvements, St Peter's Hill, Grantham 
 
The Chairman invited the Monitoring Officer to present the report and provide 
an overview of the role of Scrutiny and the Committee in considering the Call-
in of the Cabinet decision, made on 1 December 2020.  
 
In presenting the report the Monitoring Officer drew the Committees attention 
to paragraph 2.2 of the report, which set out the recommendations the 
Committee could make.  It was also confirmed that the Request for Call-in had 
met the requirements, as set out in the Council’s Constitution. 
 
 
 

4



 
 

Members were reminded of Cabinet’s decision as set out below:  

1. Cabinet approves the installation of the statue on St Peter’s Hill Green, in 
accordance with the agreed planning permission.   

2. Cabinet approves a budget allocation from the Local Priorities Reserve 
and authorise expenditure of up to £100k to underwrite the statue-
unveiling event and any consequential works. Any fundraising from the 
public, businesses and others will go towards funding this budget 
allocation.  

3. Cabinet approves the engagement of an external organisation, as part of 
the above allocation, to coordinate the unveiling, including event 
management, communications and fundraising campaign. 

4. Cabinet delegates to the Chief Executive, in consultation with the Leader 
and the Monitoring Officer, the authority to enter into a deed of gift 
agreement with The Public Memorials Appeal to transfer the ownership 
of the statue to the Council from the point of installation. 

 
The Chairman invited the Members who had submitted the Call-in, to provide 
further details on their reasons for doing so.  Councillors Wheeler, Clack, Dilks 
and Baxter were permitted, by the Chairman, to speak for up to five minutes 
each. The following points were raised: 
 

 The late publication of the Cabinet report 

 Ambiguity of the report title 

 A lack of consultation with Scrutiny 

 A lack of consultation with members of the public 

 Concerns regarding the use of £100,000 to underwrite the event   
 
Other Councillors in attendance who expressed a wish to speak, were also 
permitted by the Chairman to speak for five minutes each, Councillors Ray 
Wootten, Smith, Selby, Morgan and Kelly thanked the Chairman for the 
opportunity. The following points were raised: 
 

 The historic value to Grantham  

 Concern over the proposed timing of the unveiling, being in the midst of 
a pandemic 

 A lack of consultation with residents  

 The Council being liable for ongoing maintenance costs 
 
The Chairman opened the debate to Members of the Committee and the 
following points were raised: 
 

 A business plan not being in place 

 It was acknowledged Margaret Thatcher was a divisive character, 
however, is part of the history of Grantham and as such should be 
recognised  

 Inadequate public consultation had been undertaken  

5



 
 

 The planning application for the statue, which was approved, had not 
received substantial representations from the public 

 The risk to the Council in committing to underwrite £100,000 for the 
unveiling ceremony, be further explored 

 
The Leader of the Council advised the Committee that positive feedback had 
been received regarding the statue and confirmed that a fundraising campaign 
would be put in place, with donations already being offered.  
 
Upon the conclusion of the debate, the following motion was proposed and 
seconded:  
 
a) That Cabinet gives further consideration to item two of their decision; 

with specific regard to the financial breakdown of the up to £100k, in 
relation to fundraising and details of the anticipated on-going costs.   

 
b) Request that the Culture and Visitor Economy Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee be updated on the progress of the organisation of the event 
and fundraising.   

 
A recorded vote was taken. 
 
For:  Councillors Fellows, Sandall, Smith, Stevens, Thomas, 

Westropp (6) 
Against:  Councillor Virginia Moran (1) 
Abstain:  None (0) 
 
The motion was carried. 
 
Councillor Virginia Moran left the meeting at 11:52 
 

79. Update to Visitor Economy and Tourism Action Plan 
 
An update to the draft Greater Lincolnshire and Rutland Tourism Action Plan 
2021-2025 was provided by the Visitor Economy Lead, InvestSK Ltd.   It was 
noted that the impact of Covid-19 had resulted in the document remaining a 
working document, to reflect frequently changing circumstances.  
 
Key elements of the Plan were highlighted which included: improvement of the 
visitor experience, on-line booking facilities and the importance of partnership 
working. 
 
The strategy for South Kesteven to improve marketing was to be presented to 
the Committee’s on 9 March 2021. Members were requested to provide 
details of the area’s priorities, to be included within the South Kesteven 
Tourism and Visitor Strategy and the Tourism Action Plan. 
 

6



 
 

Following discussion, it was noted that there was a need to increase the 
number of venues offering online booking facilities and id there a ‘hopper bus 
service’ was feasible, for use between areas of interest within the District. 
 
ACTION 1 
 
A verbal presentation on the Tourism and Visitor Strategy and Tourism 
Action Plan be provided to the 9 March 2021 meeting of the Committee 
 

80. Leisure SK Ltd 
 
The Committee were provided with an update by the Head of Leisure over the 
transfer from the private contractor 1Life to LeisureSK Ltd. With prior 
agreement, the contract with 1Life was finalised early on 31 December 2020, 
to enable LeisureSK Ltd to commence on 1 January 2021 with plans to open 
on 4 January 2021.  The centres were unable to open due to the lockdown 
measure which were in place. Training and inductions had commenced with 
external support for HR, communications and marketing.  Finance, IT and 
Property support was to be supplied by the Council and recharged to 
LeisureSK Ltd through a Service Level Agreement. 
 
Covid-19 had seen a significant impact, with costs being reviewed by the 
LeisureSK Ltd Board of Directors, who were also assessing appropriate 
Furlough arrangements for some members of staff. A five-year business plan 
had been previously endorsed by Companies Committee and the Business 
plan for 2021/22 was being presented to the Companies Committee in 
February 2021. Company Directors were now in place and a Non-Executive 
Director had been recruited, whose resume would be circulated to Members 
following the ratification of the appointment at a Board meeting. 
 
Members requested User Forums be re-instated. The Head of Leisure 
confirmed that these would be put in place, alongside with a robust contract 
monitoring process.  
 
The Committee expressed their thanks to Head of Leisure and her Team, for 
their hard work. 
 

81. Impact Covid-19 to the Culture and Arts Community 
 
An update was provided by the Head of Arts and Culture who reported that 
the Deepings Literary Festival had had to be postponed until 2022 because of 
the pandemic.  
 
Deepings Literary Festival  
 
Work had continued to maintain the profile of the festival and to encourage 
reading that included a number of digital events planned for Easter and the 
possibility of further engagement over the summer. A creative writing 

7



 
 

competition available to local schools was being undertaken with free 
workshops online. The recent, highly successful, November Nights series 
would also return as part of the autumn 2021 schedule. 
 
Councillor Susan Sandall left the meeting at 12:27. 
 
Update to Digital Arts 
 
The Head of Arts and Culture emphasised the importance to continue 
engagement with the creative community following a national survey that had 
shown an increased interest in returning to venues. There remained a high 
level of contact and interest in the digital programme with paying for content 
currently under review. 
 
A bid was being investigated following further funding being available from the 
Culture Recovery Fund. Family Days planned for February and March had 
been postponed with the intention to consider offering these programmes 
during the Easter period. 
 
Members recognised the impact emanating from the uncertainly around the 
pandemic. An expansion of creative writing workshops to provide these for 
adults too was requested by Members with consideration by the Volunteer 
Committee of the Deepings Literary Festival. 
 
Members had received an invitation to attending Creative Artist Networking 
meeting on 14 January 2021. 
 
ACTION 2 
 
The Head of Arts to consult with the Project Team to develop creative 
writing workshops for online adult provision in collaboration with the 
Deepings Literary Festival Committee. 
 

82. Mental Health Workshop 
 
Cllr Paul Fellows reported back to Members from the Mental Health Workshop 
held on 10 December 2020 which he had attended on behalf of the 
committee. He had found it fascinating and interesting and recognised the 
positivity of the workshop and commitment from a broad range of members to 
promoting positive mental health. A Member/Officer working party would look 
at all aspects of mental health.  
 
The Assistant Chief Executive reported that it had been a very positive 
session with a strong commitment by the Members present to support mental 
health. The first cross-party working group meeting was scheduled for 22 
January 2021 which would report back to the scrutiny committees. 
 

8



 
 

Appreciation was extended to those councillors who had attended the Mental 
Health Workshop and for their positive input. 
 

83. Work Programme 2021 
 
To add to the work programme of the Committee the following: 

1. A verbal presentation by Councillor Charmaine Morgan to greater 
promotion of the historical value of South Kesteven, including the 
Spitalgate Heath archaeological finds.  

2. A verbal presentation by the Visitor Economy Lead on a future tourism 
and visitor strategy for South Kesteven to improve marketing.  

3. To receive a regular update on the impact of Covid-19 to the leisure, 
culture and arts services. 

 
84. Any other business which the Chairman, by reason of special 

circumstances decides is urgent 
 
Meeting ended at 12:47.  
 
 

9



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

Culture and Visitor Economy Overview and Scrutiny Committee – 
2020/2021 

Actions to meeting held 5 January 2021 
 

 
Task 

Assigned 
to 

Deadline 
Noted 

by 
Progress/Comments 

5 January 2021 

79 79. Update to Visitor Economy and Tourism Action Plan 
A verbal presentation on the Tourism and 
Visitor Strategy and Tourism Action Plan be 
provided to the 9 March 2021 meeting of 
the Committee 

Democracy 
Services 

25 
January 

2021 

Susan 
Hislop 

Added to Work Programme 

81 81. Impact Covid-19 to the Culture and Arts Community 
The Head of Arts to consult with the Project 
Team to develop creative writing workshops 
for online adult provision in collaboration 
with the Deepings Literary Festival 
Committee. 

Head of 
Arts 

24 
February 

2021 

Susan The Head of Arts responded 26 January 
2021 with Members’ emailed content on 29 
January 2021. 
A member of the Cultural Services’ Project 
Team met with a representative of the 
Deepings Literary Festival committee to 
consider the delivery of an online adult 
creative writing course. 
 
A pilot programme will be delivered through 
Stamford Arts Centre starting in February 
2021. A commitment was made for future 
programmes to be delivered in partnership 
with the Deepings Literary Festival team. 
 
Creative Writing - Online Course with Tim 
Wilson. 

11

A
genda Item

 5



 
 

 
Task 

Assigned 
to 

Deadline 
Noted 

by 
Progress/Comments 

When: Thursdays 4-6pm 
(4, 11, 18, 25 Feb, 4, 11 March) 
Where: Online - Zoom 
What: 6 session creative writing course 
Tickets: £30 for the course 
https://www.stamfordartscentre.com/whats-
on/all-shows/creative-writing-with-tim-wilson-
online/11961  

83 Work Programme 2021 

To add to the work programme of the 
Committee the following: 
 

1. A verbal presentation by Councillor 
Charmaine Morgan to greater 
promotion of the historical value of 
South Kesteven, including the 
Spitalgate Heath archaeological 
finds.  

2. A verbal presentation by the Visitor 
Economy Lead on a future tourism 
and visitor strategy for South 
Kesteven to improve marketing.  

3. To receive a regular update on the 
impact of Covid-19 to the leisure, 
culture and arts services. 

Democracy 
Services 

29 
January 

2021 

Susan 
Hislop 

Added to Work Programme  

 

12

https://www.stamfordartscentre.com/whats-on/all-shows/creative-writing-with-tim-wilson-online/11961
https://www.stamfordartscentre.com/whats-on/all-shows/creative-writing-with-tim-wilson-online/11961
https://www.stamfordartscentre.com/whats-on/all-shows/creative-writing-with-tim-wilson-online/11961


 

 

 

Culture and Visitor Economy Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee 

9 March 2021 

Report of: Councillor Barry Dobson 

  The Deputy Leader of the Council 

         
  

 

LeisureSK Ltd Performance Reporting 

To provide an update on how the performance of LeisureSK Ltd will be assessed against the 
leisure management contract, and to establish regular six-monthly reports to the Culture and 
Visitor Economy Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 

 

 

Report Author 

Karen Whitfield, Head of Leisure 

 
01476 406239 

 karen.whitfield@southkesteven.gov.uk 

 

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards: 

Healthy and Strong 
Communities 

Non-Key Two or more Wards 

 

Reviewed by: Susie McCahon, Leisure Officer 10 February 2021 

Approved by: Karen Bradford, Chief Executive 23 February 2021 

Signed off by: Councillor Barry Dobson, The Deputy Leader of the 
Council 

25 February 2021 

 

Recommendation (s) to the decision maker (s) 

That Culture and Visitor Economy Overview and Scrutiny Committee: 

1. Note the contents of this report including the Leisure Specification and the contract 
Key Performance Indicators (KPIs). 

2. Agree to receive a report every six months on the performance of LeisureSK Ltd 
against the leisure contract outcomes, to include the key performance indicators 
and feedback from users of the facilities. 

13

Agenda Item 9

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 

 
 

1 The Background to the Report 

1.1 LeisureSK Ltd commenced the management of the Council’s four leisure facilities on the 1st 

January 2021, following the expiry of the Council’s leisure management contract with 

Leisure in the Community (1Life).   

1.2 The facilities are managed under a leisure contract between the Council and LeisureSK Ltd, 

the initial contract duration is for three years, with an option to extend this for a further two 

years.  To safeguard the Council’s position, the contract can be terminated with six months’ 

notice at any time during the contract term.  

1.3 At the meeting of Culture and Visitor Economy Overview and Scrutiny Committee on the 

15th September 2020, the Committee received a presentation on the establishment of 

LeisureSK Ltd.  At this meeting the Members present provided feedback on the level of 

service that had been offered from the centres previously, and further suggested areas for 

improvement under the new management arrangements. 

1.4 This feedback was collated and used to inform the development of the Leisure Specification 

which is attached to this report at Appendix One.  This document details the operational 

standards the Council requires, and forms part of the formal contract arrangements between 

LeisureSK Ltd and the Council.   

1.5 Unfortunately, in line with the latest national lockdown, the leisure centres have remained 

closed since the 1st January 2021. The Board of Directors has taken the necessary steps to 

mitigate the impact of the closure including the use of the furlough scheme for the majority 

of the employees. 

1.6 The Council’s leisure team contains two members of staff who will be responsible for 

monitoring the performance of LeisureSK Ltd in line with the leisure management contract 

and will respond accordingly where the level of performance falls short of what is required.  

This information will form part of monthly reporting to the Board of Directors for LeisureSK 

Ltd. 

1.7 A review of the Council’s procedures for monitoring the previous leisure contract with 1Life 

has been carried out.  These have now been updated to reflect the new contract 

arrangement, and to ensure that the procedures to be adopted are efficient, customer 

focused and can be used to drive real service improvements. 

1.8 As part of the formal contract monitoring process, all four leisure facilities together with the 

sports stadium in Grantham will be visited at least once per month.  These visits will be 

unannounced, and the monitoring process will focus on three key areas, these being: 

 a)     Cleanliness 

 b)     Maintenance and repairs 

 c)      Customer experience. 

1.9 To ensure that the knowledge and skills of the leisure team are maintained and kept up to 

date, opportunities will be identified for them to undertake training sessions provided by 

industry leading organisations such as the Chief Cultural and Leisure Officers Association 

(CLOA), the Association of Public Service Excellence (APSE) and The Chartered Institute 

for the Management of Sport and Physical Activity (CIMSPA). 

 

14



 

 
 

1.10 In addition to monitoring the performance of LeisureSK Ltd, the monitoring visits will also be 

an opportunity to note any rectifications which are the responsibility of the Council.  This will 

ensure an effective partnership approach to resolving any issues in a timely and efficient 

manner.   The Council’s property team will also carry out specific inspections on the areas 

for which the Council remain responsible, ie, the fabric of the building and mechanical and 

electrical items and the leisure team will work closely with colleagues in the property team. 

1.11 During the monitoring visits timescales for any remedial action will be jointly agreed with 

LeisureSK Ltd.  For example, any ‘day to day’ cleanliness issues identified within a customer 

facing area will need to be rectified within one hour.  The timeline for repairs and 

maintenance issues will be mutually agreed as appropriate as they may require the 

assistance of an external contractor. 

1.12 In addition to the formal contract monitoring visits, the leisure team will also undertake 

random spot checks to ensure that all aspects of the service are being carried out in 

accordance with the Leisure Specification. 

1.13 As part of the contract monitoring regime, monthly meetings have been scheduled between 

the leisure team and the management of LeisureSK Ltd in order to review service 

performance, and to jointly agree any necessary action to ensure that performance 

standards are being consistently met.  Although the centres are currently closed these 

meetings have commenced to ensure that the centres are being suitably maintained whilst 

closed, and that appropriate building and health and safety checks are being carried out. 

1.14 A series of Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) have been developed and form part of the 

leisure management contract.  These will be used to assess the performance of LeisureSK 

Ltd against the Council’s identified priorities and Corporate Plan objectives.  During the 

contract term the Council has the right to introduce further performance measures in 

agreement with LeisureSK Ltd. 

1.15 As the KPIs are new and specific to the current contract with LeisureSK Ltd, the Council 

does not have the benefit of historical performance data upon which to assess current 

performance.  Therefore, the first year of the contract will be used to collect the data which 

will then be used as a baseline with improvement targets being set from year two, and on 

an annual basis thereafter. 

1.16 The table overleaf details the contract KPIs which form part of the contract with LeisureSK 

Ltd.  Some of these will be assessed against the Sport England Active Lives and Children 

and Young People survey results, the remaining measures will be assessed by data 

collected from across the leisure facilities. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

15



 

 
 

Contract Priority Outcomes: 

SKDC 
Corporate 

Plan Theme 

Priority Outcome Performance Standard 

Healthy and 
strong 
communities 

Improving the 
health of residents 
and visitors by 
encouraging and 
providing 
opportunities for 
residents in South 
Kesteven to be 
More Active, More 
Often 

PS 1.1  

(Sport England Active People / Active Lives) 

% of people physically active / inactive in South 
Kesteven 

 

PS 1.2 

(Sport England Active People / Active Lives) 

% of the population taking part in sport and physical 
activity at least twice in the last month  

 

PS 1.3 

Number of visitors to the Facilities 

 

PS1.4 

(Sport England Active People / Active Lives) 

Number of individuals who are part of a sport / PA 
club and participating at least twice in the last 28 days 

 

Healthy and 
strong 
communities 

Tackling inactivity 
in priority groups 
and areas, 
increasing the 
numbers of people 
taking part in 
physical activity 
and the frequency 
this is undertaken 
to include: 

• The Authority’s 
priority wards and 
rural areas 

• Young people 

• Older people 

 

PS 2.1 

(Sport England Active People / Active Lives) 

% of residents with disabilities physically active / 
inactive 

 

PS.2.2  

(Sport England Active People / Active Lives) 

% of residents over 65 years of age physically 
active / inactive 

 

PS 2.3 

(Sport England Active People / Active Lives) 

% of residents aged 5-18 physically active / inactive  

 

 

16



 

 
 

SKDC 

Corporate 

Plan Theme 

Priority Outcome Performance Standard 

 • Lower Socio-

Economic 

Communities 

• People with 

disabilities and / or 

long-term health 

conditions 

 

PS 2.4 

(Sport England Active People / Active Lives) 

% of residents aged 5-18 who have taken part in 

sport and physical activity in the past 28 days 

 

PS 2.5 

Number of residents taking out the concessionary 

pricing scheme as a % of those eligible from across 

the District 

 

Healthy and 

strong 

communities 

 

Growth and 

Our 

Economy  

 

Clean and 

Sustainable 

Environment 

 

High 

Performing 

Council 

Provide high 

quality leisure 

facilities and 

activities to deliver 

positive and 

affordable 

opportunities for 

people to improve 

their health and 

wellbeing 

PS 3.1 

Quest Plus scores for the Facilities  

 

PS 3.2 

User retention rates for fitness, swimming and other 

activities at the Facilities 

 

PS 3.3 

Number of Users utilising the Facilities for casual 

leisure activities such as swimming, gym use, court 

and pitch hire 

 

Healthy and 

strong 

communities 

 

High 

Performing 

Council 

Nurture robust and 

meaningful 

partnerships 

across sectors to 

improve activity 

opportunities and 

encourage 

partnership 

working and 

improve  

PS 4.1  

Number of sport and physical activity clubs / groups 

/ organisations utilising the Facilities 

 

PS 4.2 

Number of residents / local groups engaged in 

South Kesteven Sport and Physical Activity Network 

 

 

17



 

 
 

SKDC 

Corporate 

Plan Theme 

Priority Outcome Performance Standard 

 

 

community 

cohesion 

PS 4.3 

(Sport England Active People / Active Lives) 

Number of people volunteering in sport at least 

twice in the last year 

 

PS 4.4 

(MENE Survey) 

% of adults utilising outdoor space for exercise / 

health reasons  

 

PS 4.5 

Incidents of anti-social behaviour across South 

Kesteven 

 

Healthy and 

strong 

communities 

 

High 

Performing 

Council 

Positively promote 

the benefits of 

physical activity 

and deliver a 

positive customer 

experience for 

those who engage 

PS 5.1 

Annual customer satisfaction survey for Users  

 

PS 5.2 

Monthly User satisfaction through on-going 

customer comment capture at the Facilities 

 

PS 5.3 

Feedback from Meet the Manager meetings (as set 

out in the Services Specification) and Facility 

specific forums 

 

1.17 It is proposed that Culture and Visitor Economy Overview and Scrutiny Committee receive 

a six-monthly report containing detailed information on the performance of LeisureSK Ltd.  

As well as providing the Committee with details on the progress of LeisureSK Ltd against 

the contract KPIs, key information resulting from the contract monitoring meetings will also 

be included. 

1.18 One of the key contract KPIs is the achievement of Quest Plus scores for the facilities.  

Quest is an independently accredited leisure industry scheme of assessment and award, 

which encourages continuous improvement across all aspects of leisure service delivery.  

Quest defines industry standards and good practice and also offers a way of benchmarking 

the level of service provided against other centres.  Quest scores are assessed through a 

mixture of formal audits on the facilities and mystery customer visits. 

18



 

 
 

1.19 In addition to this the Board of Directors are currently developing a balanced scorecard 

which will provide a holistic strategic overview of the performance of LeisureSK Ltd.  This 

will include the following information: 

  a)      The financial performance of the company 

 b)      Customer feedback 

 c)      Internal Processes 

 d)      Learning and development opportunities. 

1.20 The balanced scorecard will be used by the Directors of LeisureSK Ltd to monitor the 

performance of the company and drive service improvements.  This will also provide a 

valuable insight for Culture and Visitor Economy Overview and Scrutiny Committee on the 

level of service being provided. 

2 Consultation and Feedback Received, Including Overview and Scrutiny 

2.1  At the meeting of Culture and Visitor Economy Overview and Scrutiny Committee on the 

15th September 2020 the Committee considered the service improvements they would like 

to be achieved through the Council’s leisure contract with LeisureSK Ltd.  These have been 

captured and contained within the Leisure Specification which forms the basis of the 

Council’s contractual relationship with LeisureSK Ltd. 

2.2 At the meeting of Culture and Visitor Economy Overview and Scrutiny Committee on the 5th 

January 2021 a verbal update was provided to Members on the successful establishment 

of LeisureSK Ltd. 

2.3 The Business Plan for LeisureSK Ltd for 2021/22 was considered by Companies Committee 

on the 23rd February 2021.  Companies Committee will be responsible for assessing the 

financial performance of LeisureSK Ltd against the targets contained in the Business Plan. 

3 Available Options Considered 

3.1 This report details the contract monitoring arrangements that will be adopted to assess the 

performance of LeisureSK Ltd.  Under the previous contract no formal scrutiny was 

undertaken on the performance of the leisure contract or the contractor.  As a result, there 

were no formal arrangements in place for Members to raise concerns around the facilities 

or the level of service being offered.  

4 Preferred Option 

4.1 That Culture and Visitor Economy Overview and Scrutiny Committee agree to receive six 

monthly update reports on the performance of LeisureSK Ltd. 

5 Reasons for the Recommendation (s) 

5.1 The Council has a duty to ensure that the leisure contract arrangement provides value for 

money and that the contract delivers on the Council’s corporate objectives.  Appropriate 

scrutiny arrangements are required to assess the performance of LeisureSK Ltd against the 

Council’s agreed standards and ensure that these are formally reported. 

6 Next Steps – Communication and Implementation of the Decision 

6.1 Once the lockdown restrictions are lifted and the leisure facilities can open, the leisure team 

will adopt the robust contract monitoring approach described within this report.  This will 

19



 

 
 

ensure that LeisureSK Ltd operates the leisure centres in accordance with the Council’s 

expectations contained within the Leisure Specification. 

6.2 Year One of the leisure contract will be used to collate the baseline information in relation 

to the key performance indicators.  From year two onwards improvement targets will be set 

and progress against these reported to the Culture and Visitor Economy Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee. 

6.3 The Council are in the process of signing up to the Association for Public Service Excellence 

(APSE) National Benchmarking Service for sports and leisure facilities.  As part of this 

service, facilities are grouped by the type of facility and the management arrangement in 

place.  This will allow the Council with valuable information on how the leisure facilities are 

performing across a wide range of metrics including: 

 a)      Cost of service 

 b)      Customer satisfaction 

 c)      Quality assurance and community consultation 

 d)      Subsidy per visit 

 e)      Total usage 

 f)      Customer spend 

Companies Committee will continue to receive an annual Business Plan from LeisureSK 

Ltd and will assess the company’s financial progress against targets. 

7 Financial Implications  

7.1 The financial implications that fall within the responsibility of the Council must be delivered 

and met from approved budget levels for 2021/22.  Any anticipated or forecast financial 

pressures that arise during the financial year must be resolved in accordance with the 

Financial Regulations and consideration of amendments to the approved budget 

framework. 

Financial Implications reviewed by: Richard Wyles, Interim Director of Finance 

8 Legal and Governance Implications  

8.1 The Committee will need to satisfy itself and that the contract monitoring arrangements are 

sufficiently robust and appropriate.  The Council as owner will be required to oversee and 

scrutinise the company’s performance against the Leisure Specification and key 

performance indicators to ensure that the company performs in line with expectations. 

Legal Implications reviewed by: Shahin Ismail, Director of Law and Governance 

9 Equality and Safeguarding Implications  

9.1 LeisureSK Ltd has an Equality and Diversity Policy and a Safeguarding Policy which have 

been adopted by the Board of Directors. 

9.2 In her role as Director for LeisureSK Ltd, Karen Bradford the Chief Executive of the Council, 

has been nominated as the Director with specific responsibility for Safeguarding.  In this role 

she will, with the support of the other Directors of LeisureSK Ltd, be responsible for ensuring 

that these policies are fully implemented and that the staff employed in the leisure centres, 

and the customers that use them are kept safe and not disadvantaged in any way. 

20



 

 
 

10 Risk and Mitigation 

10.1 The Board of Directors are developing a Risk Register for LeisureSK Ltd which will include 

existing and emerging risks to the business, together with any mitigating actions.  The 

Directors will be responsible for maintaining the Risk Register and implementing any actions 

which may be required to protect LeisureSK Ltd. 

10.2 The Head of Leisure, as the Council’s representative will liaise with the Board of Directors 

to ensure that any potential risks to the Council as owner of the company are identified and 

appropriately managed. 

10.3 In terms of the operations of the leisure centres, one of the key areas of risk is in relation to 

health and safety.  David Monkhouse was successfully appointed as the Non-Executive 

Director for LeisureSK Ltd and joined the Board of Directors in January 2021.  David has 

worked in senior management roles within the leisure industry for a significant number of 

years and has detailed knowledge and experience of managing health and safety.  He has 

recently been nominated as the Director with specific responsibility for health and safety. 

10.4 In addition to this, to ensure that there are robust health and safety arrangements in place 

across the leisure centres, LeisureSK Ltd have commissioned a specialist company called 

Right Directions to undertake an audit of the leisure facilities and the procedures and 

processes in place. The initial audit visits are currently in progress and they have also been 

retained on an ongoing basis to provide support to LeisureSK Ltd to include health and 

safety training, regular site audits and ad hoc advice on health and safety matters.  

11 Community Safety Implications  

11.1 None arising from this report 

12 How will the recommendations support South Kesteven District 

Council’s declaration of a climate emergency? 

12.1 The Council’s leisure facilities currently account for 41.5% of the Council’s carbon 

emissions.  The Directors and management of LeisureSK Ltd remain committed to the 

efficient management of carbon emissions and will explore any future opportunities that 

arise to establish the associated costs and benefits. 

12.2 As part of the Council’s leisure improvement plans the introduction of carbon efficient 

measures will be considered as part of the planned improvements to the leisure centres. 

13 Other Implications (where significant)  

13.1 None arising from this report. 

14 Appendices 

Appendix One – Leisure Specification 

 

Report Timeline:  Date of Publication on Forward Plan (if 
required) 

Not required 

Previously Considered by: Culture and 
Visitor Economy Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 

Not applicable 

Final Decision date   Not applicable 

21



 

 
 

 

22



 

  

 

 
 

 
South Kesteven District Council 
 
 
Leisure Services Specification 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

23

Appendix 1



 

1 INTRODUCTION  

1.1 Background 

1.1.1 This Services Specification outlines the Performance Standards that the Authority's 

Contractor, LeisureSK, shall meet. It details the Services that Contractor shall provide at the 

specified Facilities.  

1.1.2 This Services Specification covers the following Facilities: 

• Bourne Leisure Centre 

• Deepings Leisure Centre 

• Grantham Meres Leisure Centre and South Kesteven Sports Stadium 

• Stamford Leisure Pool 

1.1.3 This Services Specification is divided into the following sections: 

• General Core Requirements 

• Service Requirements 

• Asset Management  

• Performance Management and Reporting 

1.1.4 This Services Specification uses the following structure to provide the Contractor with the 

requirements and Performance Standards set out by the Authority.  

Required Outcome Provides the Contractor with a high-level view of 
the required outcome of each element of the 
services. 

Performance Standards A list of standards that relate to the outcome 
that the Contractor shall meet but which are 
covered by regulations, Legislation and 
standards that determine the level of 
performance that the Contractor shall meet and 
establish whether the Contractor is meeting the 
requirements of the Authority.  

Reporting Requirements This details the reporting requirements that the 
Contractor shall meet in relation to the specified 
Performance Standard.  

 

1.2 Measurement 

1.2.1 The monitoring of the Contractor’s achievement of the Performance Standards shall be 

measured in accordance with this Services Specification.  

1.3 Reporting 

1.3.1 The Contractor is obliged to report on its performance in accordance, and to meet the 

Performance Standards set out in this Schedule. 

2 GENERAL CORE REQUIREMENTS  

2.1 Introduction 

2.1.1 The overall vision of the Agreeement is to work towards the targets set by the Authority and 

to provide high quality, safe and accessible Facilities for use by residents and visitors. 

2.1.2 The delivery of this vision will be continually monitored and measured through: 

• The Authority’s Performance Standards 

• Quality management and accreditation 

• Measuring engagement and participation at and with the Facilities 

24



 

 

2.2 The Authority's Strategic Objectives and Priority Outcomes 

2.2.1 The Authority's Corporate Plan focuses on 5 main themes: 

• Growth and our Economy 

• Housing that Meets the Needs of All Residents 

• Healthy and Strong Communities 

• Clean and Sustainable Environment 

• High Performing Council 

2.2.2 The Contractor will support the Authority’s Corporate Plan, aims and outcomes, as outlined 

in Appendix 1. 

2.2.3 The Authority's priority outcomes for its leisure provision are: 

1) Improving the health of residents by encouraging and providing opportunities for 

residents in South Kesteven to be more active, more often 

2) Tackling inactivity in priority groups and areas, increasing the numbers of people 

taking part in physical activity and the frequency this is undertaken to include: 

• The Authority’s priority wards and rural areas 

• Young people (under the age of 16) 

• Older people (over 55’s) 

• Lower Socio-Economic Communities 

• People with disabilities and/or long-term health conditions 

3) Provide high quality leisure facilities and activities that promote the benefits of physical 

activity and deliver positive and affordable opportunities for people to improve their 

health and wellbeing 

4) Nurture robust and meaningful partnerships across sectors to improve activity 

opportunities and encourage partnership working and improve community cohesion 

5) Positively promote the benefits of physical activity and deliver a positive customer 

experience for those who engage. 

2.2.4 The Contractor must ensure that its programming, pricing, policies, marketing, development 

strategies and training support the Authority in achieving these priority outcomes whilst also 

being commercially sustainable.  

Performance Standards 

2.2.5 The Contractor must ensure it collects data to enable it to measure Performance Standards 

using up to date technology and data collection methods. The Performance Standards are 

as set out in Schedule 3 of this Agreement. 

 

2.3 Facilities Management  

2.3.1 Table 2 below outlines the Facilities that are included in the Agreement and the current 

opening times of the Facilities. 

Table 2: Facility opening times and provision 

Bourne Leisure Centre 

Current opening times Monday 06:00 – 22:00 

Tuesday 06:00 – 22:00 

Wednesday 06:00 – 22:00 

Thursday 06:00 – 22:00 

Friday 06:00 – 22:00 

Saturday 08:00 – 17:00 

25



 

Sunday 08:00 – 17:00 

Leisure Pool  Flume  

Family splash area 

Lane swimming 

Fitness Suite 25 stations 

Exercise Studio  1 multi-purpose studio 

Health Facilities Sauna 

Sports Hall  4 badminton court sports hall  

Café  Snacks and drinks available   

Light bite options 

Deepings Leisure Centre 

Current opening times Monday 06:00 – 22:00 

Tuesday 06:00 – 22:00 

Wednesday 06:00 – 22:00 

Thursday 06:00 – 22:00 

Friday 06:00 – 22:00 

Saturday 08:00 – 19:00 

Sunday 08:00 – 19:00 

Main Pool 25m x 12.5m  

Teaching Pool 12.5m x 5m 

Fitness Suite 32 stations 

Exercise Studio 1 multi-purpose studio 

1 spin studio 

Evening and weekend access to 1 additional 
exercise studio 

Squash Courts 2 squash courts 

Sports Hall 4 badminton court sports hall 

Café  Snacks and drinks available  

Grass Pitches 2 full size rugby pitches 

2 full size football pitches  

Training pitches of different sizes 

Grantham Meres Leisure Centre 

Current opening times Monday 06:00 – 22:30 

Tuesday 06:00 – 22:30 

Wednesday 06:00 – 22:30 

Thursday 06:00 – 22:30 

Friday 06:00 – 22:30 

Saturday 06:30 – 20:00 

Sunday 06:30 – 20:00 

26



 

Main Pool 17m x 25m, 8 lane competition pool 

Seating for 400 spectators 

Teaching Pool 12m x 8m 

Leisure Pools Lagoon pool 

Kiddie’s pool 

Jacuzzi  

Flume 

Main Hall Sports hall 27m x 34m  

Pull out seating for over 1200 audience and 
lighting rig for shows and events 

Small Hall 18m x 19m  

Table Tennis Centre 21.8m x 36.1m 

Gym 64 stations 

Exercise Studios 1 multi-purpose studio 

1 spin studio 

3G Pitch 1 full size 3G pitch – split it to smaller sided 
pitches 

Meeting Rooms 3 meeting rooms available for hire 

Café  Snacks and drinks available  

Sandwiches and hot meals 

Stamford Leisure Pool 

Current opening times Monday 6:30 – 21:30 

Tuesday 6:30 – 21:30 

Wednesday 6:30 – 21:30 

Thursday 6:30 – 21:30 

Friday 6:30 – 21:30 

Saturday 08:00 – 17:00 

Sunday 08:00 – 16:00 

Pool Leisure pool  

Widest 28m x longest 25m 

Fitness Suite 15 stations 

27



 

 

2.4 Leisure Improvements 

2.4.1 The Authority is currently reviewing leisure provision across the District and undertaking 

feasibility work to establish latent need and demand for Facilities. 

2.4.2 The Authority will consult and work with the Contractor on any projects or improvement 

programmes that may require closures of any of the Facilities to complete the programme of 

improvements. 

2.4.3 The Contractor is required to provide input at the Authority's request in respect of any new 

facilities. 

2.4.4 Upon the completion of any new Authority leisure facilities, the Contractor will assume the 

operation under this Agreement and any such facility shall become a Facility. 

 

2.5 Active Communities  

2.5.1 As part of the Authority’s Sport and Physical Activity Strategy, the Authority will work with the 

Contractor to produce a programme of community activities.  

2.5.2 The Contractor will ensure that its programming, pricing, policies, marketing and training are 

focused to support the Authority to achieve these desired outcomes.  

 

2.6 Partnership Philosophy and Governance  

2.6.1 There will be shared partnership philosophy underpinned by:  

• A shared vision to provide high quality leisure opportunities for residents and visitors 

to South Kesteven 

• A shared commitment to increasing participation levels in South Kesteven and 

reducing inactivity 

• A commitment on collaboration and co-operation 

• Effective and regular communication and reporting. 

 

2.7 Management Fee 

The Contractor will be required to provide the Services outlined in this Agreement and to 

maximise income to offset any operational expenditure.  It is the intention that the Contractor 

must work to become cost neutral to the Authority.  Due to the ongoing impact of Covid-19 

the Authority accepts that it will need to make a management fee payment to the Contractor 

for its first year of operation, this payment is to be capped at £500,000 and will be paid 

quarterly in advance.  Thereafter any management fee payable either to the Contractor or 

the Authority, will be determined by the Authority’s budget setting process, which shall take 

account of the annual business plan (to be produced pursuant to Table 3 of Section 5 of this 

Services Specification).  

 

28



 

2.8 Asset Management   

2.8.1 The Contractor shall ensure that the Facilities are kept up to date, the Assets are maintained 

and reflect the needs of Users. 

2.8.2 The Contractor shall ensure the Facilities and all equipment are fully available for use, 

conform with legislation and statutory requirements and perform in the most efficient manner 

and full economic life.  

2.8.3 For the purpose of this Services Specification the Authority and/or the Contractor will be 

responsible for items of repairs and maintenance as detailed in Section 4 of this Services 

Specification. 

2.8.4 The Contractor will have responsibility for the execution of the Pre-Planned Maintenance 

(PPM) schedule, which has a record of all new and existing structures, plant, materials, 

components and fittings. The Contractor will be required to undertake the following as part of 

their management of Assets: 

• Ensure the asset register and PPM for each Facility are maintained and updated as and 

when alterations are made 

• Maintain the equipment inventory as set out Appendix 8, which will be updated when 

equipment is removed, replaced, updated, introduced or relocated 

• Develop an energy management and monitoring programme 

• Maintain and update asbestos registers as required 

• Implement and maintain a suitable system for legionella monitoring and control 

 

2.9 Utilities 

2.9.1 The Contractor is responsible for all utility costs across the Facilities.  

2.9.2 The Contractor is required to keep a monthly record of all utility consumption for each 

Facility. 

 

2.10 Quality Management 

Required Outcome 

2.10.1  The Contractor will be required to have a quality management system in place that covers 

all aspects of the services outlined in this Services Specification and is focused on the 

User’s experience.  

2.10.2  The Contractor is required to achieve and maintain Sport England’s Quest Plus Facility 

Management accreditation scheme (or an equivalent successor scheme) across all the 

Facilities throughout the Contract Period. 

 
Performance Standards 

2.10.3  The Contractor will be required to maintain Quest Plus (or equivalent successor scheme) 

accreditation for the Facilities throughout the Contract Period. 

2.10.4  Quest scores will be used to set targets as part of the annual business plan as required to 

be produced pursuant to Table 3 of Section 5 of this Services Specification. 

 
Reporting Requirements 

2.10.5  The Contractor shall inform the Authority of the results of its quality management 

assessments.  

 

29



 

3 SERVICE REQUIREMENTS 

3.1 Opening Hours 

Required Outcome 

3.1.1 Facilities that are fully operational and accessible by the community during the minimum 

opening hours as identified in Appendix 2 of this Services Specification ("Minimum Opening 

Hours"). 

Performance Standards 

3.1.2 The Facilities must be available for public use during the Minimum Opening Hours. 

3.1.3 The reception must be open and staffed at all times whilst the Facilities are open. Outside of 

the Minimum Opening Hours an automated answering service should be provided. 

3.1.4 The Authority must agree in writing any variations to the Minimum Opening Hours prior to 

any alterations being implemented. 

3.1.5 The Contractor shall advertise all opening times of the Facilities on the website and at the 

Facility to outline opening times and timetables for all programmes at the Facilities. 

3.1.6 Any closures of the Facilities for maintenance purposes will be made in agreement between 

the Contractor and the Authority. 

3.1.7 In the event of closure of any of the Facilities due to unforeseen or emergency conditions, 

the Contractor shall inform the Authority immediately by phone. This will be followed up in 

writing as soon as possible. The Contractor shall ensure Users are informed of the situation 

and kept up to date. The Contractor will be responsible for updating other stakeholders 

affected by the closure of the Facilities including appropriate funders, where funding has 

been granted. 

3.1.8 The Contractor shall provide a plan of how it would deal with any Emergency ("Emergency 

Plan") to the Authority within 2 weeks of the Commencement Date . The Contractor will 

implement the Emergency Plan in the event of an Emergency, and inform the Authority of 

the same as soon as possible. Any revision made to the Emergency Plan should be 

updated on the relevant documents and reported to the Authority. 

3.1.9 The Minimum Opening Hours shall be reviewed by both parties on an annual basis. 

Amendments will be made based on throughputs for the Facilities and usage patterns. 

3.1.10 Alterations to the opening hours for specific periods i.e. holiday periods must be proposed by 

the Contractor and agreed by the Authority in writing. 

3.1.11 South Kesteven Sports Stadium at the Grantham Meres Leisure Centre will need to be 

available when necessary for one-off bookings for events. 

 

Reporting Requirements 

3.1.12 The Contractor must submit proposals for changes to the Minimum Opening Hours of the 

Facilities in writing a minimum of two Months before the proposed changes are intended to 

become effective. 

3.1.13 The Contractor shall maintain a daily log of hours that the relevant Facility is open and 

submit any details of failure to meet the Performance Standards. 

3.1.14 The Contractor shall submit details of any failure to maintain the required Performance 

Standards as set out above as part of the monthly performance monitoring report. 

 

 

30



 

3.2 Use of Facilities in an Emergency 

 Required Outcome 

3.2.1 The Facilities will be available for use for Emergency purposes by the Authority.  

 

 Performance Standards 

3.2.2 The role of the Authority in any major Emergency is to: 

• Provide resources to assist the emergency services, as requested 

• Work with partners to meet the immediate and longer-term welfare needs of survivors 

and the community e.g. shelter, feeding, clothing 

• To restore services affected by the Emergency for which the Authority is usually 

responsible 

• Provide mutual aid arrangements to neighbouring county and district councils. 

3.2.3 The Facilities and the Contractor will be expected to play a role in the Authority’s ability to 

perform these functions. The Authority may therefore need to suspend trading at very short 

notice for an incident. 

 
 Reporting Requirements 

3.2.4 For the purpose of dealing with an Emergency situation, the Contractor will provide the 

Authority with an up-to-date list of names and contact numbers of key members of Staff and 

key holders including the Contract Manager, General Manager and Duty Manager(s). 

 

3.3 Access 

Required Outcome 

3.3.1 Facilities that are fully accessible by all Users during opening hours. 

 

Performance Standards 

3.3.2 The Contractor shall ensure that the Facilities are accessible and in a condition fit for use by 

Users. Each Facility must be capable of being used for its intended function, with control 

over access and ensuring an appropriate entrance and exit. 

3.3.3 All Facilities should be accessible for people with disabilities as per the Equality Act 2010. 

This includes emergency exits and evacuation points. 

3.3.4 The Contractor shall ensure that all directional signage within the Facilities is clear and 

complies with the Equality Act 2010 and relevant planning restrictions. 

 

Reporting Requirements 

3.3.5 The Contractor shall submit details of any failure to maintain the required Performance 

Standards as set out above as part of the monthly performance monitoring report. 

 

3.4 User Experience 

 Required Outcome 

3.4.1 The Contractor will provide a high standard of customer service to all Users of the Facilities. 

All Users should have a high quality and enjoyable customer experience. The level of 

customer care should reflect Good Industry Practice. 

 

31



 

Performance Standards 

3.4.2 The Contractor shall operate and administer a comprehensive and effective User feedback 

system to record verbal and written comments and consider all User groups of the Facilities. 

3.4.3 The Contractor shall collate the following User service data: 

• Create a database of User feedback covering all aspects of the service with monthly 

analysis of all verbal and written comments and complaints to be included in the 

monthly performance monitoring report 

• The Contractor shall provide a comprehensive customer service policy that ensures that 

Users are dealt with promptly, effectively and courteously at all times 

• Annual surveys shall be completed at each Facility with questions to Users regarding 

customer experience, cleanliness and about the leisure offer 

• The Contractor shall hold quarterly Meet the Manager meetings or equivalent User 

Forums. 

3.4.4 The Contractor shall operate the feedback system and ensure that ICT systems can record 

enquires written / verbal comments or complaints so that the action taken in relation to a 

specific comment or complaint can be tracked. 

3.4.5 The Contractor shall support the Authority with additional consultation relating to customer 

service and leisure provision development when required including User surveys and the 

production of relevant strategies and documents. 

3.4.6 The Contractor, in conjunction with the Authority, will arrange and attend regular meetings 

with key stakeholder groups at specific Facilities where required. This includes the Stadium 

Stakeholders Meeting for South Kesteven Sport Stadium and the 3G Pitch (Grantham Meres 

Leisure Centre) Stakeholders Meeting, and any subsequent User groups / forums 

established. 

3.4.7 The Contractor shall ensure that all Facilities have appropriate staffing levels to meet the 

demands of the activity at each Facility to ensure high standards of customer service. 

 

 Reporting Requirements 

3.4.8 The Contractor will produce a report detailing all complaints (to include comments and 

compliments) to be provided to the Authority on a monthly basis. A summary of this report 

and details of any failure to maintain the required Performance Standards set out above 

should be included within the monthly performance monitoring report. 

3.4.9 The Contractor shall report the results of the annual surveys completed at each Facility to 

the Authority. 

3.4.10 The Contractor will provide the Authority with a summary of feedback from Meet the 

Manager meetings or equivalent User Forums.  

 

3.5 Programming for All 

 Required Outcome 

3.5.1 A dynamic, innovative and accessible programme of activities will be developed that is 

responsive to the demand of the Users and to serve the community, in line with achieving 

the Authority’s specified priority outcomes. 

 

 

 

 

32



 

Performance Standards 

3.5.2 The Contractor shall ensure that the programme of activities serves to provide opportunities 

for casual use, block bookings and use by community groups, sports clubs and schools.  

3.5.3 The Authority is, at the date of this Agreement, in the process of developing a Sport and 

Physical Activity Strategy.  Once this has been adopted by the Authority programmes of 

activity provided shall reflect the Strategy in relation to participation and local government 

and National Governing Body agendas. 

3.5.4 The Contractor must ensure that the programme across the Facilities produces a rounded 

offer for Users and provides an appropriate balance of activities throughout the district. 

3.5.5 The Contractor shall recognise the values of sports development within the programme and 

develop links between the Facilities and local clubs, links to other local authority facilities 

and the Sport and Physical Activity Strategy to play an important role in achieving greater 

usage by priority groups. 

3.5.6 The Contractor will provide a holiday activity programme.  

3.5.7 The Contractor is required to avoid club or session bookings on the same day and time 

across all of the Facilities so that the general public shall be able to gain casual access to at 

least one Facility at any given day or time. 

3.5.8 The Contractor shall negotiate swimming sessions and sports use with individual schools, on 

terms to be agreed between the Contractor and the schools. 

Non- sporting events 

3.5.9 The Facilities may be used to provide a programme of non-sporting events and bookings. 

Considerations must be made to ensure the nature of the activity will not damage the 

Facility and is in keeping with the Authority’s values.  

3.5.10  In all cases, the Contractor is advised to seek prior approval for each type of non-sporting 

event booking. 

3.5.11  The Authority may use the Facilities as a Polling Station and / or Count Centre as required 

for Parliamentary, Local Government or By-Elections and referendums and will make a 

payment in respect of this but will accept no responsibility for losses incurred due to booking 

cancellations.  

 

Reporting Requirements  

3.5.12  The Contractor shall submit a programme of use for each Facility annually, as required to be 

produced pursuant to Table 3 of Section 5 of this Services Specification. This includes for 

each main activity area including swimming pool, sports hall, artificial turf pitches and sports 

stadium. Any changes to the agreed programmes shall only be achieved through mutual 

written agreement. 

3.5.13  The Contractor shall provide a specific events list quarterly, which is to be updated monthly 

as part of the monthly performance monitoring report, to the Authority. 

3.5.14  The Contractor must review the effectiveness of the activity programmes on a regular basis, 

but in any event as a minimum every 12 Months. The Contractor will work together with the 

Authority to ensure that the activities provided reflects the changing needs of the users and 

work together to identify new opportunities.  

3.5.15  The Contractor shall maintain a record of actual use of all the Facilities and activities and 

shall submit details of the outcome of programming reviews, activity usage and any failure 

to meet the specified Performance Standards as part of the quarterly performance 

monitoring report. 

 

33



 

3.6 Booking System 

 Required Outcome 

3.6.1 An accessible booking system that is flexible and innovative to provide Users with ease of 

access to booking the Facility(s) and to maximise participation. The system shall enable 

bookings to made online, in person, over the phone or in writing. 

 

Performance Standards 

3.6.2 The Contractor shall operate an accessible booking service for all Users. 

3.6.3 The Contractor shall ensure that the booking system is clear and easily understood by 

Users. This booking system will incorporate comprehensive terms and conditions for hire, 

enable advanced booking arrangements, cancellation and non-attendance policies and 

maintain User information. It will provide an effective administration system to record and 

deliver all bookings. 

3.6.4 The Contractor must operate comprehensive and effective cash collection and booking 

administrative services. 

3.6.5 The Contractor will provide an online booking system and an app to facilitate leisure 

bookings. 

 

Reporting Requirements 

3.6.6 The Contractor must retain a record of accrual use of all of the Facilities and activities and 

will submit details of activity usage and any failure to provide any of the specified 

Performance Standards, activities or sessions as part of the monthly performance monitoring 

report. 

 

3.7 Pricing  

Required Outcome 

3.7.1 The Contractor will implement a price scheme aligned to local market rates to ensure 

accessibility to the Facilities.  

 

Performance Standards 

3.7.2 The Authority has set specific maximum prices for certain activities and Users, which could 

increase as a maximum at the rate of inflation (RPI) for the Service Period. The Contractor 

must not charge more than the price (as RPI indexed) for the core activities or Users set out 

as of 1st April 2020 (see Appendix 3). This is to be reviewed and agreed on an annual basis 

by 1st January each year and to be implemented for the following financial year.  

3.7.3 Charges for hire of facilities, activities and services outside those set by the Authority such 

as commercial use, hire of equipment, lessons, activity sessions, catering and retail sales 

including sports goods will be at the discretion of the Contractor. The price list of the 

outgoing contractor can be found in Appendix 4. 

3.7.4 The Contractor must offer a concessionary pricing scheme to ensure the Facilities are 

accessible for the specific target groups: 

• Those receiving unemployment benefits 

• People with registered disabilities 

• Students (under the age of 22 years and in full time education) 

• Senior citizens (over the age of state retirement) 

• Families on income support 

34



 

Reporting Requirements 

3.7.5 The Contractor must provide a pricing schedule for all core activities listed in Appendix 3 

annually to the Authority, in the format. 

3.7.6 The Contractor must submit details of any failure to achieve the required Performance 

Standards as set out above, as part of the monthly performance monitoring report. 

 

3.8 Staffing and Skills Development 

Required Outcome 

3.8.1 The Contractor will ensure that the Facilities are adequately staffed to provide the services 

outlined in this Services Specification and to meet the required Legislation and Good 

Industry Practice.  

3.8.2 The Contractor will ensure Staff have the appropriate and necessary training required for 

their job role, especially relating to the swimming pools, health and fitness gym and any 

children’s activities. 

 

Performance Standards 

3.8.3 As a minimum, staffing levels must be appropriate to the activity and delivered by suitably 

trained personnel. 

3.8.4 The Contractor shall provide Staff with the necessary professional and technical competence 

to fulfil the requirements of their job role in a safe and efficient manner. 

3.8.5 The Contractor must meet the Disclosure and Barring Scheme requirements as outlined in 

this Agreement in relation to all Staff employed and for the provision of services including 

third-party clubs or coaches. 

3.8.6 The Contractor shall ensure that all coaches and deliverers used meet the minimum 

standards set out by National Governing Bodies and all qualifications are checked prior to 

delivery commencing.   

3.8.7 The Contractor shall ensure appropriately qualified persons or sub-contractor companies 

carry out any maintenance works. 

3.8.8 The Contractor shall ensure that reception desks are appropriately staffed at all times the 

Facilities are open to the public. Reception staffing levels and access control procedures 

must meet the demand for the service at all times. 

 

35



 

3.8.9 The Contractor shall comply with the provisions of all employment Legislation including 

Equal Opportunities, the EU Working Time Regulations, the National Minimum Wage and 

the National Living Wage. 

3.8.10  The Contractor shall implement a scheme for the continued assessment and development 

of Staff. 

3.8.11  The Contractor shall employ sufficient qualified and experienced Staff to ensure a high 

standard of customer service and care at all times. The Contractor shall employ sufficient 

Staff reserves to be able to provide these high standards in times of sickness, leave, training 

and other absence from work. 

3.8.12  The Contractor shall employ suitably qualified Staff for the holiday activity programme as 

described in paragraph 3.5.6 of the Services Specification in accordance with relevant 

Legislation.  

3.8.13  The Contractor is expected to ensure that Staff undertake regular training (including 

refresher and advanced courses) to achieve qualifications.  

3.8.14  The Contractor shall maintain detailed training records to include attendance at training 

sessions. 

3.8.15  The Contractor is required to have a comprehensive set of supporting policies including 

disciplinary, safeguarding, training and induction processes in accordance with Good 

Industry Practice. 

 

Reporting Requirements 

3.8.16 The Contractor must submit details of any failure to maintain the required Performance 

Standards set out above as part of the monthly performance monitoring report. 

 

3.9 Safeguarding 

Required Outcome 

3.9.1 The Contractor must ensure that all activities involving young people and vulnerable persons 

will be carried out in accordance with their Safeguarding Policy and in accordance with legal 

and best practice safeguarding standards. 

Performance Standards 

3.9.2 All Staff delivering services to or in direct contact with young people and/or vulnerable 

persons must have an appropriate Disclosure and Barring Service check This should be 

updated when required in line with DBS guidelines.  

3.9.3 The Contractor must embed the South Kesteven District Council's Safeguarding Policy and 

Procedures 2020-2023 (see Appendix 5), as updated from time to time, in their own 

safeguarding policy. 

3.9.4 All new Staff are required to undergo safeguarding training prior to commencing work. 

3.9.5 Existing Staff are required to have refresher training on safeguarding as a minimum annually 

or whereby there are significant changes to Legislation or South Kesteven District Council 

Safeguarding policies and procedures.  

 

Reporting Requirements 

3.9.6 The Contractor shall submit details of failure to maintain the required Performance 

Standards set out above as part of the monthly performance monitoring report. 

 

36



 

3.10 Equalities 

Required Outcome 

3.10.1 The Contractor must provide the Authority with a copy of their Equality and Diversity policy 

and ensure that this embeds the Authority’s Equality and Diversity Annual Mission Statement 

(see Appendix 6). 

 
Performance Standards 

3.10.2 The Contractor’s Equality and Diversity policy must meet the Equality Duty which is set by 

Legislation as part of the Equality Act 2010. This duty gives protection for all persons who 

might be discriminated against, as outlined in South Kesteven District Council’s Equality and 

Diversity Annual Mission statement, in Appendix 6. 

3.10.3 The Contractor shall operate its Equality Policy in respect of all activities and events. 

3.10.4 The Contractor must commit to supporting the Authority’s agenda, values and behaviours.  

3.10.5 The Contractor shall ensure Staff complete awareness training in respect of their 

responsibilities under the Equality Act 2010. 

 

Reporting Requirements 

3.10.6 The Contractor shall submit details of failure to maintain the require Performance Standards 

set out above as part of the monthly performance monitoring report.  

 

3.11 Cleaning and Housekeeping 

Required Outcome 

3.11.1 All Facilities are to be maintained to a high standard of cleanliness to provide a healthy, safe 

and desirable environment for all users and to promote a positive image of the Facilities at all 

times.  

 
Performance Standards 

3.11.2 The Contractor will ensure the cleaning schedule for each Facility is designed to ensure 

cleaning requirements are met at all times, including peak periods. 

3.11.3 The Contractor shall determine the precise nature of cleaning required in each Facility 

depending upon the design, materials and decoration of the area. 

3.11.4 The Contractor shall ensure that all cleaning materials and equipment are appropriate for the 

cleaning task required and are used in accordance with the manufacturer’s instructions, 

British Standards and relevant health and safety requirements. 

3.11.5 The cleaning of the Facilities will comprise of 3 elements including: 

 

 Routine Cleaning 

3.11.6 The Contractor shall carry out routine cleaning to all areas of the buildings at each Facility, at 

a suitable time that does not disrupt use of such Facilities.  

3.11.7 Routine cleaning shall be scheduled to meet the demand of usage of the Facilities to 

maintain a high standard of cleanliness at all times. 

 

 

 

 

37



 

 

Reactive Cleaning 

3.11.8  The Contractor shall complete spot checks and provide reactive cleaning requirements 

during opening hours in all the Facilities.  

3.11.9  The Contractor shall ensure a comprehensive system of cleanliness monitoring is 

established and that cleaning is undertaken when necessary to achieve a high standard of 

cleanliness at all times. 

Deep Cleaning 

3.11.10 The Contractor shall develop a schedule of ‘deep cleaning’ to maintain the required 

standards of cleanliness. This should include high level cleaning in all areas as required. If 

required, the Contractor will complete this work outside of opening hours. 

3.11.11   For clarification, the cleaning schedule shall include, as a minimum, the following items: 

• To keep the entrance to the Facilities safe, tidy and clean 

• To ensure regular glazing cleaning to the inside and outside to maintain transparency 

and appearance 

• To keep toilets sanitary and clean  

• To keep other sanitary equipment and other sinks and fittings in a clean, hygienic 

condition for use 

• All floors to be kept clean, tidy and safe – including no standing water present in the 

changing Facilities 

• To maintain the appearance of floors throughout the Facilities 

• To provide consumable supplies when the Facilities are in use – to include soap, toilet 

paper and paper towels 

• To keep all surfaces clean including painted surfaces, walls, ceilings, vertical tiled 

surfaces and doors 

• To keep all furniture, equipment, fixtures and fittings clean, including any blinds, light 

fittings and diffusers 

• To avoid overflowing of bins internally and to keep the exterior of the bin unit clean 

and tidy  

• To dispose of waste hygienically and safely  

• To perform emergency cleaning 

• To remove graffiti  

• To ensure outdoor areas and car parks are litter free 

 

Reporting Requirements 

3.11.12 As part of the collation of User satisfaction comments, the Contractor will provide 

information on customer satisfaction in relation to cleaning for each of the Facilities. 

Comments and feedback will be included in the monthly performance monitoring report. 

3.11.13 The Contractor will include a summary of cleaning items within the monthly performance 

monitoring report. 

3.11.14 The Contractor shall submit details of failure to maintain the require Performance Standards 

set out above as part of the monthly performance monitoring report. 

3.11.15 The Contractor will report the results of the annual User survey in relation to cleaning 

satisfaction at each of the Facilities. 

 

 

 
 

38



 

3.12 Food and Beverages 

Required Outcome 

3.12.1     The provision of catering services including café service, vending machines and event 

catering to include healthy, nutritional options and options for dietary requirements. 

 

Performance Standards 

3.12.2 The Contractor will provide the following catering options, as appropriate, to meet the demand 

at each Facility: 

• Light snacks 

• Hot and cold beverages 

• Vending machine service 

• Special event catering  

• Licensed bar service at Grantham Meres Leisure Centre for events. 

3.12.3 The Contractor will be responsible for obtaining and arranging the transfer of (where 

necessary) the required Justices’ on license(s) for the sale or supply of any alcohol at the 

Facilities and will ensure that at all times the person or persons holding such licence is fully 

responsible for the operation of any licensed area. 

3.12.4 The Contractor must fully comply with all relevant Legislation and /or Codes of Practice 

relating to catering and develop a written hazard analysis and management plan for all food 

hazards and will ensure that this plan is always implemented and adhered to. 

3.12.5 The Contractor shall ensure the proprietor of any food business that establishes itself within 

any Facility is registered with the Environment Health Section of South Kesteven District 

Council, as a food business and as required by the Food Premises (Registration) Regulations 

1991 (as amended).  

3.12.6 The Contractor shall ensure healthy eating options are provided as part of the product range 

to be agreed with the Authority.  

3.12.7 Where café facilities are to be provided, an appropriate range of hot and cold food will be 

available for sale, including nutritionally sound options and options for vegetarians.  

3.12.8 The Contractor will be required to provide and maintain loose equipment such as kitchen 

utensils, crockery, cutlery, table linen, towels, tea-towels etc. Sufficient equipment must be 

provided by the Contractor to enable it to make full and comprehensive use of the catering 

facilities at each Facility. 

 

Reporting Requirements 

3.12.9   The Contractor must submit details of any failure to maintain the required Performance 

Standards set out above as part of the monthly performance monitoring report.  

 

3.13 Marketing and Publicity 

Required Outcome 

3.13.1   The Contractor will adopt an approach to marketing and publicity activities that promotes the 

Facilities in a way that best meets the Authority’s priority outcomes. 

 

 

 

 

39



 

Performance Standards 

3.13.2 The Contractor shall develop a marketing plan for each Facility to ensure existing potential 

Users are made aware through a wide range of channels of the services being offered and 

encouraged to use these services. 

3.13.3 The Contractor will implement a modern approach to branding that is compatible and 

complimentary to the Authority’s corporate image and priority outcomes. 

3.13.4 The Contractor will install and utilise the necessary ICT equipment and capacity to enable it 

to use the latest relationship and digital marketing techniques including a website and social 

media. 

3.13.5 The Contractor will ensure the logo and branding provided by the Authority is used on all 

relevant marketing and promotional material, where appropriate.   

3.13.6 The Contractor does not require permission from the Authority for day to day marketing 

activities.  

3.13.7 The Contractor will support the Authority and partner organisations through promoting their 

activities and supplying them with updates on leisure programmes and initiatives. 

3.13.8 The Contractor shall ensure that notice boards are kept up to date with relevant information, 

and that no information shall be displayed outside of the notice board area. 

3.13.9 The Contractor shall ensure that the names and photographs of the Contractor’s Facility 

managers and other senior Staff must be prominently displayed at all time in the entrance of 

the facility.  

3.13.10 Should the Contractor wish to enter third party sponsorship or advertising agreements, such 

arrangements must be approved in advance in writing by the Authority. 

3.13.11 The Authority reserves the right to make use of appropriate space within the Facilities, free 

of charge, for promotional and publicity material. 

3.13.12 The Contractor shall ensure that all standards set by the Advertising Standards Authority and 

National Trading Standards Board are adhered to at all times. 

 

Reporting Requirements 

3.13.13 The Contractor shall submit a marketing plan to the Authority. 

3.13.14 The Contractor shall ensure that a report on progress of marketing and usage figures will be 

provided monthly.  

3.13.15 The Contractor will report any failure to deliver or breach of the Performance Standards set 

out of above. 

 

3.14 Data and ICT Management  

Required Outcome 

3.14.1 To provide ICT systems to enable a high quality of customer service and to comprehensively 

record, track and report on User visit behaviour to effectively measure throughputs and 

usage figures.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

40



 

Performance Standards 

3.14.2 The Contractor will ensure that the ICT equipment is fully functioning and fit for purpose and 

that these services are maintained throughout the period of service. 

3.14.3 The Contractor shall be the custodian of User and operational data on behalf of the 

Authority. All data captured, including Direct Debit membership data will be deemed as being 

owned by the Authority. 

3.14.4 The Contractor’s ICT system must provide the following service provision: 

• Online bookings and payments 

• Fully integrated swipe card membership system 

• Usage and membership tracking  

• Real time tracking of income and expenditure 

• Data sharing protocols with partners 

• Comprehensive database of User groups accessible by authorised Staff at the reception 

of each Facility  

3.14.5 The Contractor will ensure that the booking system is fit for purpose and service for all 

relevant activities at the Facilities. The booking system will be based on technological 

systems that allow for advancing booking arrangements and payments, collation of User 

information, effective administration systems and operational information systems that record 

and effectively deliver all bookings. 

3.14.6 The Contractor shall utilise a swipe card memberships system which allows authorised entry 

into the Facilities. 

Reporting Requirements  

3.14.7 The Contractor shall submit details of failure to maintain the required Performance 

Standards set out above as part of the monthly performance monitoring report. 

 

3.15 Health and Safety Management  

Required Outcome 

3.15.1 The Contractor must comply with all relevant Health and Safety Legislation, guidance and 

Good Industry Practice.  

3.15.2 The Contractor shall produce, maintain and comply with a health and safety procedures 

manual.  

 

Performance Standards 

3.15.3 The Contractor must comply with all relevant Health and Safety Legislation including the 

Health and Safety at Work etc Act 1974 as the Employer. 

3.15.4 The Contractor shall operate the Facilities in line with the recommendations in the most 

recent edition of the HSE publication “Management of Health and Safety in Swimming 

Pools”. 

3.15.5 All health and safety documentation shall be available for inspection by the Authority or other 

authorised bodies/ persons at any time. 

3.15.6 The Contractor shall carry out annual risk assessment for the Facilities, which will be 

included in the documentation. 

3.15.7 The Contractor shall carry out risk assessment and revise them: 

• If there is an accident or incident where a change is required to prevent a recurrence 

• If a new task or activity is introduced where a new risk assessment is required before 

commencement  

41



 

• Before and after new equipment is purchased and utilised  

• If there are changes to the building / premises or the way it is used 

• When there is a change of personnel carrying out the task. 

3.15.8 The Contractor shall complete annual fire risk assessment, to be reviewed and updated 

when required. Copies shall be available for Staff and for inspection by the Authority at all 

times. 

3.15.9 The Contractor shall provide safe working procedures for all activities, equipment, cleaning 

and other tasks undertaken by Staff. 

3.15.10 The Contractor shall ensure that all surface water within internal areas causing dangerous 

floor surfaces is dealt with immediately upon identification of the problem and signed 

appropriately. 

3.15.11 The Contractor shall ensure that all Staff, agents, suppliers or contractors who may be 

required to enter the Facilities are fully aware of all the relevant procedures concerning 

safeguarding, health and safety work and fire evacuation procedures. This includes the 

relevant sections of a COSHH assessment and a protocol for signing in of suppliers and 

contractors.  

3.15.12 The Contractor must ensure all new starters undertake gym inductions before using the 

fitness equipment. If the User is an experienced gym user and refuses to undertake the 

induction, the User must sign a disclaimer to declare they are an experienced gym user and 

do not require an induction. The Contractor shall keep a record of inductions sessions.  

3.15.13 The Contractor must request copies of the risk assessments of hirers and users that are 

organising clubs, groups and events at the Facilities. 

3.15.14 The Contractor will have an inventory of First Aid equipment that is inspected and 

documented weekly.  

3.15.15 The Contractor shall provide and maintain defibrillators.  

3.15.16 The Contractor shall ensure that the Facilities have appropriate numbers of trained First Aid 

Staff at each of the Facilities at any time, but at least 1 trained member of Staff at each 

Facility. 

3.15.17 The Contractor shall identify a member of Staff at each facility as the Health and Safety Lead 

and shall ensure that they receive full training as appropriate for the responsibility. This 

training shall include holding valid First Aid at Work and Emergency First Aid at Work training 

sessions, from an accredited training organisation.  

3.15.18 The Contractor shall maintain a record of all training undertaken by Staff in relation to health 

and safety training.  

3.15.19 All new Staff will receive health and safety training. 

3.15.20 The Contractor shall ensure that all signs relating to exits and fire exits are to the standards 

required by health and safety Legislation and the requirements of fire and licensing officers 

in respect of general operation and for special events.  

3.15.21 The Contractor shall maintain all health and safety signage and notices. 

3.15.22 The Contractor shall ensure that all exits are cleared of rubbish and debris and are checked 

regularly as part of the daily inspection by duty managers.  

3.15.23 The Contractor shall minimise any possible infectious diseases and ensure there is a robust 

and effective regime to prevent legionella (as applicable) with respect to: 

• Air conditioning and ventilation systems 

• Showers, toilets and water systems 

• Pest control 

42



 

3.15.24 The Contractor shall provide sufficient numbers of qualified Staff to be on duty across the 

Facilities during operating times across the facility to ensure the safety of Staff, contractors, 

Users and visitors. 

3.15.25 The Contractor shall notify the Authority of all defects to plant and equipment affecting the 

health and safety of Staff, Users and other visitors to the Facilities as soon as possible. 

3.15.26 The Contractor shall set out levels, types and quantities of protective clothing and 

equipment to be provided at each Facility. These shall be inspected and replaced where 

required and a record shall be kept by the Contractor of equipment issued to Staff.  

3.15.27 The Contractor shall at all times ensure compliance with maximum occupation levels for 

each area within the Facilities as stipulated in the relevant risk assessments.  

3.15.28 The Contractor shall monitor safe occupancy levels for Users using the Facilities and ensure 

there are adequate numbers of trained Staff for the nature of the activity taking place. 

3.15.29 The Contractor shall control public throughput of the Facilities to a level that does not 

jeopardise customer safety, reduce hygiene standards or compromise the quality of service 

provided.  

3.15.30 The Contractor shall ensure that all catering services are in accordance with the Food 

Safety Act 1990 and any subsequent legislation in relation to food hygiene and safety.  

3.15.31 The Contractor shall ensure that hazardous materials or equipment are kept under proper 

control and safekeeping and are clearly labelled to comply with the relevant Control of 

Substances Hazardous to Health Regulations 2002. The Contractor must ensure COSHH 

data sheets are easily accessible at each facility, for reference should an accident involving 

chemicals occur.  

3.15.32 The Contractor shall ensure that all cleaning materials and equipment are appropriate for 

their required function and are used in accordance with the manufacturer’s instructions, 

British Standards and relevant Health and Safety Legislation, particularly Control of 

Substances Hazardous to Health Regulations 2002.  

3.15.33 The Contractor shall maintain records of: 

• All accidents and incidents involving Staff, members of the public and suppliers and 

contractors 

• Evacuations and incident occurring at the premises 

• Records of reports made in accordance with Reporting of Injuries, Diseases and 

Dangerous Occurrences Regulations 2013 (RIDDOR) 

3.15.34 The Contractor shall ensure that RIDDOR reportable incidents are reported to the Authority, 

within 24 hours of the incident occurring, with a full incident report, a copy of the RIDDOR 

report and to include details of any relevant actions taken/ to be taken.  

3.15.35 The Contractor shall ensure that there are full and comprehensive Normal Operating Plans 

(NOPs) and Emergency Action Plans (EAPs) in place, as required by Good Industry 

Practice.  

3.15.36 The Contractor shall ensure only authorised personnel are permitted into non-public areas 

of the Facilities, such as plant rooms, storage areas and offices.  

3.15.37 The Contractor shall enforce the Smoke-free (Premises and Enforcement) Regulations 2006 

which relates to smoking in public places to ensure that there is no smoking of cigarettes or 

e-cigarettes or any tobacco or substitute tobacco within the grounds of each Facility, 

including any associated car parks.  

3.15.38 The following safety standards must be maintained and enforced within the Facilities by the 

Contractor as follows: 

• No person is allowed to enter the Facilities who: 

- Does not have appropriate clothing / sportswear/ footwear 

43



 

- Is under the influence of alcohol or drugs or is carrying them on their person 

(except for prescribed medication)  

- Causes inappropriate behaviour / noise / disturbance 

• No animals or pets except for special events such as Dog Shows. Assistant dogs are 

restricted to reception and social areas only.  

• No use of sunbeds is permitted within the Facilities.  

 

Reporting Requirements 

3.15.39 The Contractor will provide and keep updated a health and safety management plan, 

pursuant to Table 3 of Section 5 of this Services Specification. 

3.15.40 Leisure SK must report details of any accidents, incidents and evacuations reportable under 

the RIDDOR regulations to the Authority within 24 hours of occurrence. 

3.15.41 The Contractor shall provide a summary of all accidents, incidents and near misses 

occurring at the Facilities as part of the monthly performance monitoring report.  

3.15.42 The Contractor shall record all inspections or visits made by Environmental Health Officers, 

the Health and Safety Executive and any other person or body who is entitled to access the 

Facilities in exercising their duties.  

3.15.43 The Contractor must provide documented records of pool water samples when requested by 

the Authority. 

3.15.44 The Contractor shall submit details of any failures to maintain the required Performance 

Standards as part of the monthly performance monitoring report. 

 

3.16 Major Incident Reporting 

Required Outcome 

3.16.1 All major incidents are to be reported to the Authority and all other relevant Authorities (e.g. 

Police, Fire, Health and Safety Executive) as soon as possible.  

 

Performance Standards 

3.16.2 The Contractor shall ensure the Authority is made aware of all major incidents. A major 

incident includes (but is not limited to) fatalities, severe injury, assault on Users, theft, 

problems relating to security and vandalism, major damage to plant or equipment, closure or 

any other issue likely to be of interest or concern to the Authority and Users.  

3.16.3 The Contractor shall ensure that in the event of a major incident, the below procedure is 

followed: 

• Reassure members of the public and Staff at the Facility 

• Ensure the Authority has been briefed on the incident 

• Ensure that any critical actions as a result of the incident can be progressed by the 

relevant party 

• Minimise the likelihood of a repeat incident 

3.16.4 The Contractor shall ensure that records of all major incidents, accidents, near misses and 

actions taken are sent to the Authority. 

 

 

 

 

 

44



 

Reporting Requirements 

3.16.5 The Contractor shall maintain an up to date log of all major incidents and severe injuries 

defined by RIDDOR (as applicable) and their response to such incident. 

3.16.6 The Contractor shall ensure that, as soon as practicable, following emergency major 

incident, a full account of the actions taken, and the implications is provided to the Authority. 

In the event of the Authority or its insurers wishing to undertake an investigation, the 

Contractor shall fully comply with any reasonable requests for information from Staff 

attending such an inquiry.  

3.16.7 The Contractor shall provide a summary of all accidents, incidents and near misses 

occurring at any of the Facilities as part of the monthly accident reporting. A summary of this 

report and details of any failure to maintain the required Performance Standards set out 

above should be included as part of the monthly performance monitoring report.  

45



 

 

4 ASSET MANAGEMENT 

4.1 Property Database 

4.1.1 The Contractor must provide a database, which is a record of all new and existing materials, 

components and fittings over the Contract Period. These will be achieved by developing the 

following manuals: 

• Maintain asset registers for each of the Facilities – to be updated as and when 

alterations or any new works are carried out (as applicable) 

• Maintain an equipment Inventory which will be updated as and when equipment is 

removed, updated and/or introduced 

• Develop an energy management and monitoring programme – in conjunction with the 

Authority’s Property Team and the Authority’s contractor(s) 

• Updated Equality Act 2010 audits 

• Maintain and update asbestos registers as required 

• Implement and maintain a suitable system for legionella monitoring and a control 

record 

• Undertake all statutory and mandatory testing and certification in accordance with 

industry guidance  

4.1.2 The minimum requirements for each item logged on the database as follows:  

• Contract information of the manufacturer / importer / agent / supplier 

• A unique identification code (if appropriate)  

• The inspection/ service interval required (including Statutory Inspections) 

• Record(s) of inspections 

• Information on any modifications / specification changes / refurbishment / replacement 

of items 

• Information on buildings, energy and utilities usage 

 

4.2 Maintenance of Building, Plant and Equipment 

Required Outcome 

4.2.1 The Facilities and all equipment are to be fully available for use, conform with Legislation 

and perform in the most efficient manner and full economic life. 

 

Performance Standards 

4.2.2 For the purpose of this Services Specification the Authority and/or the Contractor will be 

responsible for the items of Repairs and Maintenance as set out in Appendix 7. 

4.2.3 The Contractor is to ensure that the Facilities are kept in good repair and meet the needs of 

the Users of the Facilities.  

4.2.4 The Contractor shall ensure that on a continuing basis the maintenance and operating 

procedures ensure that: 

• The Facilities are available at those time specified in this Services Specification, 

subject to any agreed planned maintenance  

• The Facilities are kept in good decorative order (subject to fair wear and tear) 

• The Assets are maintained in accordance with the manufacturer's instructions  

46



 

4.2.5 The Contractor shall ensure that both planned preventative lifecycle and reactive 

maintenance is carried out. 

4.2.6 Maintenance procedures shall ensure the Facilities: 

• Comply with all applicable Legislation 

• Are in a safe and secure condition 

• Are maintained to such levels of condition and to such specifications that are consistent 

with good estate management 

4.2.7 The Contractor must ensure all maintenance repairs use materials that are comparable and 

compatible with existing materials used on the Facilities. 

4.2.8 The Contractor must ensure all work is carried out in accordance with appropriate British 

Standards and codes of practice.  

4.2.9 The Contractor shall ensure all maintenance activity is recorded.  

4.2.10 The Contractor shall ensure that only appropriately trained personnel undertaken reactive 

maintenance repairs.  

4.2.11 The Shared Use Agreement at Bourne Leisure Centre requires the Contractor to share the 

responsibility and cost of maintaining and cleaning the sports hall. 

4.2.12 The Contractor shall ensure that the Asbestos Register (which is to be provided by the 

Authority to the Contractor at the Commencement Date) is permanently available to the 

Authority, contractors and suppliers and any other operatives carrying out work on either the 

Contractor’s or the Authority’s behalf at the Facilities.  

Equipment Testing 

4.2.13 The Contractor shall maintain all fixtures and fittings and loose equipment as identified in the 

inventory set out in Appendix 8.  

4.2.14 Fitness equipment will undergo regular testing by Staff and qualified contractors (as 

applicable). 

4.2.15 The Contractor shall carry out repairs or replacement of moving parts and keep all the 

equipment systems in working order.  

4.2.16 The Contractor is required to provide storage and security for equipment kept at the Facilities 

that belong to 3rd party club. The Contractor is not responsible for maintaining this 

equipment.  

4.2.17 The Contractor shall ensure than an item of equipment that is found to defective and poses a 

potential hazard is immediately removed from service.  

Re-Lamping 

4.2.18 As per Appendix 7, the Contractor shall carry out all necessary re-lamping across the 

Facilities. The Contractor shall monitor and ensure there is a proactive approach to re-

lamping and ensure efficiency with a view to achieving the greatest possible reductions in 

replacement frequency and cost.  

External Maintenance 

4.2.19 As per Appendix 7, the Authority shall provide maintenance services to the external 

environment at the Facilities. 

 

Reporting Requirements 

4.2.20 The Contractor must report all non-compliant measurements recorded. 

4.2.21 The Contractor must provide updates on maintenance items, where appropriate to be 

included in the monthly performance monitoring report.   

 

47



 

4.2.22 The Contractor must submit details of any failures to achieve the required Performance 

Standards as part of the monthly performance monitoring report.  

 

4.3 Statutory / Mandatory Inspections 

Required Outcome 

4.3.1 All relevant statutory and other mandatory requirements are to be met in terms of 

maintenance Services and inspections. 

 

Performance Standards 

4.3.2 The Contractor shall work with the Authority and Authority’s contractor(s) to ensure that all 

statutory and other mandatory requirements are set in respect of the maintenance, servicing 

and inspections.  

4.3.3 The Contractor shall set up a programme of statutory, mandatory and insurance inspections 

to ensure all Assets receive the required inspections at the correct time.  

4.3.4 The Contractor shall maintain a record of all statutory certification and servicing completed 

by the Contractor or the Authority or a Authority’s contractor(s), provided that such statutory 

certification and servicing information is given to the Contractor and not the Authority upon 

completion of the certification or servicing. 

4.3.5 The Contractor shall cooperate with any periodic inspections made by the Authority, partners 

or any authorised external agencies and will provide reasonable assistance where 

necessary.  

Portable Appliance Testing 

4.3.6 The Contractor shall ensure that as a minimum, Portable Appliance Testing (PAT) is 

implemented and carried out in accordance with the Code of Practice for In-services 

Inspection and Testing of Electrical Equipment published by the Institution of Electrical 

Engineers, as amended from time to time. The Contractor shall ensure that all portable 

appliances are tested and certified with copies of certifications then forwarded to the 

Authority.  

4.3.7 The Contractor shall test any items of equipment introduced to the Facilities prior to it being 

used.  

4.3.8 The Contractor shall maintain a register of portable appliances held at the Facilities. The 

Contractor shall maintain the register containing details of the executed PAT tests. 

 

Reporting Requirements 

4.3.9 The Contractor shall submit details of any failure to maintain the required Performance 

Standards set out above as part of the monthly performance monitoring report. 

 

4.4 Grounds Maintenance 

Required Outcome 

4.4.1 External grounds are to be maintained in a well-presented manner and to provide a safe 

environment for all Users and promoting a positive image of the Facilities at all times. 

 

 

 

 

48



 

Performance Standards 

External Grounds 

4.4.2 The Authority, or Authority’s contractor, is responsible for all external grounds maintenance 

at the Facilities to include the maintenance of soft landscaped areas in and around the car 

parks. 

Grassy Areas 

4.4.3 The Authority, or Authority’s contractor, will carry out maintenance of all grassed areas. 

Slippery Surfaces 

4.4.4 The Authority, or Authority’s contractor, shall treat hard surfaces with an appropriate 

herbicide or suitable material.  

Snow and Ice 

4.4.5 During the winter months, the Authority shall arrange the provision of salt for pathways and 

around external entrances to provide safe routes to Users of the Facilities.  

4.4.6 The Contractor will ensure that, when required, the salt is used on pathways and around 

external entrances to provide a safe route for Users of the facility. 

4.4.7 The Contractor will ensure that any weather-related hazards are reported to the Authority 

immediately. 

Litter Picking 

4.4.8 The Contractor is responsible for litter picking to ensure the Facilities are left in a clean, tidy 

and presentable state for Users. This includes external and car parks areas.  

4.4.9 The Authority, or Authority’s contractor, shall arrange for external litter bins to be emptied at 

South Kesteven Sports Stadium.   

4.4.10 Additional external bins provided for events will be emptied by the Contractor.  

 

Reporting Requirements 

4.4.11 The Contractor shall submit details of any failure to maintain the required Performance 

Standards set out above as part of the monthly performance monitoring report.  

 

4.5 Climate Emergency, Environmental and Energy Management  

Required Outcome 

4.5.1 Facilities that are operated in an environmentally sensitive and sustainable manner to reduce 

energy consumption, minimise chemical usage, recycle appropriate non-hazardous wastes 

and contribute to the delivery of the Authority’s wider policies for safeguarding the 

environment and promoting sustainability.  

Perfomance Standards 

4.5.2 The Contractor must operate the Facilities in an environmentally sensitive and sustainable 

manner reducing energy consumption, minimising chemical usage, recycling of appropriate 

materials, reduction in water consumption.  

4.5.3 The Contractor must have a clear policy and implement effective operational practices that 

demonstrate a positive effect on the environment. 

4.5.4 The Authority has declared a climate emergency and has pledged to reduce its carbon 

footprint by at least 30% by 2030 and to become net-zero carbon as soon as viable before 

2050. The Contractor will support the proposal and the Authority’s commitment to this project 

and the development of a strategy with the Carbon Trust. 

 

49



 

Reporting Requirements 

4.5.5 The Contractor will provide reports on all energy consumption and the amount of non-

recyclable waste collected from the Facilities. 

 

4.6 Legislation and Policy 

Required Outcome 

4.6.1 The Facilities must comply with all Legislation relating to the management of the Facilities 

and the provision of Services including for example, the Equality Act 2010, environmental 

Legislation, licensing Legislation, health and safety, control of asbestos and legionella as 

outlined in aspects of this Services Specification.  

 

Performance Standards 

4.6.2 The Contractor shall ensure there are no breaches of Legislation, including but not limited to 

health and safety, equality law, data protection and child protection.  

4.6.3 The Contractor shall ensure that all Staff have a working knowledge of the Legislation, 

regulations and industry guidelines relating to best practice in management of sport and 

Facilities. In particular, the Contractor should ensure that: 

• All agents or suppliers who enter the Facilities are fully aware of all relevant rules and 

procedures regarding safeguarding, health and safety regime and fire risk and 

precautions 

• First aid equipment is stored and checked weekly  

• Hazardous materials stored at the Facilities are kept under proper control and 

safekeeping and clearly labelled to comply with the relevant Control of Substances 

Hazardous to Health 2002 

• It undertakes its own risk assessment and training 

• It keeps records of accidents and actions taken following accidents and near misses 

• There is a full and comprehensive fire and evacuation procedure. 

4.6.4 The Contractor shall ensure that the Facilities are managed in accordance with the CIMPSA 

document “Health and Fitness Operators’ Guide” or the UK active Code of Conduct for 

fitness suite operators or any replacement industry guidance.  

4.6.5 The Contractor shall comply with all relevant Authority policies as notified.  

 

Reporting Requirements 

4.6.6 The Contractor shall submit details of any failure to maintain the required Performance 

Standards set out above as part of the monthly performance monitoring report.  

 

4.7 Water (Hot and Cold Installation)  

Required Outcome 

4.7.1 To ensure the supply of hot and cold water to those areas requiring water for the provision of 

the Services, also ensuring that where such water is required for drinking purposes that it is 

from a potable source. 

 

 

 

 

50



 

Performance Standards 

4.7.2 The Contractor shall ensure hot and cold water is available at the Facilities. 

4.7.3 The Contractor shall ensure water temperatures are maintained at required standards to 

prevent legionella and other water-borne contaminants. 

4.7.4 The Contractor shall undertake bacteriological testing of the hot and cold water systems, 

including sampling for Legionella. 

4.7.5 Where hot water is supplied without thermostatic control, all taps should be appropriately 

labelled. 

4.7.6 The Contractor shall provide drinking water machines that shall have a supply of cold water.  

4.7.7 Where tap water is not drinkable, all taps will be appropriately labelled to indicate this. 

 

Reporting Requirements 

4.7.8 The Contractor must submit details of any failure to maintain the required Performance 

Standards set out above as part of the monthly performance monitoring report. 

 

4.8 Drainage 

Required Outcome 

4.8.1 The drainage systems shall provide safe and effective removal of wastewater, surface water 

and liquid and solid waste from the Facilities in compliance with the relevant Legislation. All 

drainage systems shall be maintained according to the appropriate health and safety 

Legislation and standards. 

4.8.2 Requirements in building regulation shall be complied with for foul and surface water 

drainage.  

 

Performance Standards 

4.8.3 The Contractor shall maintain the drainage and sewage system.  

4.8.4 Discharge temperatures shall not exceed recommendations set by the Environment Agency.  

4.8.5 Reporting Requirements  

4.8.6 The Contractor shall report any concerns observed in relation to the drainage and sewerage 

system matters to the Authority. 

 

4.9 Ventilation 

Required Outcome 

4.9.1 Ventilation within the Facilities will provide a healthy and suitable environment to enable 

enjoyment of the sport, leisure or activity being carried out.  

 
Performance Standards 

4.9.2 The Contractor will be required to achieve appropriate ventilations rates to meet the 

requirements set out for each area in the Facilities in line with Good Industry Practice 

 

 
 
 
 
 

51



 

 
Reporting Requirements 
 

4.9.3 Results of all non-compliant measurements of ventilation rates shall be reported to the 

Authority. 

 

4.10 Heating (Thermal Comfort) 

Required Outcome 

4.10.1 To provide a pleasant thermal environment fit for the sport, leisure or activity being carried 

out at a particular time. 

 
 
Performance Standards 

4.10.2 The Contractor is responsible for maintaining the temperatures to meet requirements for 

sports halls, class studios and meeting rooms in line with Good Industry Practice and take 

measurements accordingly. 

4.10.3 Where required the Contractor will notify and liaise with the Authority and/or the Authority’s 

contractor to resolve issues in relation to the heating systems. 

 

Reporting Requirements 

4.10.4 Results of all non-compliant temperatures shall be reported to the Authority. 

4.10.5 The Contractor must submit details of any failure to maintain the required Performance 

Standards set out above as part of the monthly performance monitoring report. 

 

4.11 Lighting 

4.11.1 To provide adequate levels of lighting for the activity being undertaken within each activity 

area, in accordance with Good Industry Practice. 

 

Performance Standards 

4.11.2 The Contractor shall ensure that each area within the Facilities has adequate lighting levels 

appropriate for usage. 

4.11.3 The Contractor shall adopt a proactive approach to re-lamping at the Facilities.  

4.11.4 The Authority will be responsible for external lighting, including car park lighting at the 

Facility. The Contractor shall report any failures to external lighting in as soon as possible. 

 
Reporting Requirements 

4.11.5 Results of all non-compliant light levels shall be recorded and reported to the Authority. 

4.11.6 The Contractor must submit details of any failure to maintain the required Performance 

Standards set out above as part of the monthly performance monitoring report. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

52



 

4.12 Pool Water Quality 

Required Outcome 

4.12.1 All swimming pools are to provide a safe and comfortable environment for user to participate 

in swimming, water sports and leisure sessions as required in this Services Specification.  

Performance Standards 

4.12.2 The Contractor shall ensure the swimming pools are maintained at a safe and comfortable 

standard to use, in line with health and safety Legislation. The following standards (as 

updated or replaced from time to time) must be complied with:  

• The Handbook of Sports and Recreational Building Design Volume 3 published as at 
1996 and The Pool Water Guide; Treatment and Quality of Swimming Pool Water 

• CIMSPA Swimming Pool Treatment and Quality Standards 

• HSC/HSE “Safety in Swimming Pools”  

• Pool Water Treatment Advisory Group – Swimming Pool Water Treatment and Quality 
Standards 

4.12.3 The Contractor shall ensure that all pool water is of the level of quality and temperature 

stipulated in the guidance listed in 4.12.2.  

4.12.4 The Contractor shall ensure that the pool water is tested for pH and chlorine levels in 

accordance with swimming guidelines, every 3 hours and the initial test each day before the 

pools are used. The Contractor shall ensure that complete records are kept of all readings, 

including the date and time. These shall be available for inspection by the Authority at any 

time. 

4.12.5 The Contractor shall ensure that filter backwashing is completed as recommended in the 

relevant manufacturer’s plant maintenance instructions to ensure that the water quality is 

maintained at the required standard. 

4.12.6 In the event of additional health and safety recommendations or more stringent standards 

being set or advised by industry standards, the Contractor shall adhere to these standards.  

4.12.7 The Contractor shall ensure that monthly bacteriological tests are undertaken. 

 

Reporting Requirements 

4.12.8 The Contractor shall report inspections and results that are non-compliant.  

4.12.9 The Contractor shall submit details of any failure to maintain the required Performances 

standards set out above as part of the monthly performance monitoring report. 

 

4.13 CCTV and Security 

Required Outcome 

4.13.1 Facilities that are secure and provide a safe level of security to Users and Staff at the 

Facilities, which does not compromise the personal privacy of users. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

53



 

Performance Standards 

4.13.2 All areas within the Facilities shall have adequate security measures in place. 

4.13.3 Leisure SK will ensure it complies with Data Protection Legislation and the Protection of 

Freedoms Act 2012 and any other relevant Legislation. 

4.13.4 The Contractor is responsible for internal CCTV and intruder alarm systems at the Facilities 

and to ensure they are functioning at all times.  

4.13.5 The Contractor shall ensure that all intruder alarm systems are maintained and tested 

regularly. 

4.13.6 The Contractor will be responsible for the safekeeping of keys to the Facilities and the 

maintenance of a key register. The Contractor will provide a list of key holders to the 

Authority. The Contractor shall update the list whenever changes are made. 

4.13.7 The Contractor will ensure that only authorised personnel are granted access to plant areas 

containing specialist equipment and machinery.  

4.13.8 The Contractor is responsible for the total security system and its maintenance and shall 

retain and utilise the existing systems where possible and appropriate.  

4.13.9 The Contractor shall ensure that appropriate out of hours key holders are appointed to 

respond to intruder alarms. 

 

Reporting Requirements 

4.13.10 Leisure SK shall submit details of any failure to maintain the required Performance 

Standards set out above as part of the monthly performance monitoring report. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

54



 

5 PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT AND REPORTING 

Required Outcome 

5.1.1 The Contractor shall provide reports to the Authority as required by this Agreement and this 

Services Specification 

 

Performance Standards and Reporting Requirements 

5.1.2 The Contractor shall ensure that there is a clearly defined responsibility chain for 

implementing, monitoring and reviewing service delivery.  

5.1.3 The General Manager from each facility shall liaise with the Authority and consult with 

relevant Authority Officers as necessary to ensure efficient provision of the Services. 

5.1.4 The General Manager shall attend monthly meetings with the Authority’s representative in 

order to discuss the reports and plans outlined below.  

5.1.5 The following plans/ programmes are to be submitted by the Contractor to the Authority for 

approval: 

Table 3: Plans and Programmes Reporting 

 

Plan Title 

 

Frequency  Submission Dates / 
Comments 

Business Plan 

 

Annual To be developed in conjunction 
with the Authority and 
submitted to a meeting of the 
Authority’s Companies 
Committee in January each 
year 

Programmes of Use 

 

Annual Within 3 Months following the 
Commencement Date and 
within 3 Months prior to each 
subsequent Contract Year 

Performance Standard Targets 

 

Quarterly and as requested by 
the Authority 

Within 2 weeks of the end of 
each Quarter 

Planned Preventative 
Maintenance (PPM) Schedule 

 

Annual Within 3 Months following the 
Commencement Date and 
within 3 Months prior to each 
subsequent Contract Year 

Proposal for changes to 
Minimum Opening Hours 

 

As required Minimum of 2 Months prior to 
implementation of proposed 
changes 

Proposal for changes to Pricing 
at the Facilities  

Annual in relation to fees and 
charges 

As required for items outside of 
the fees and charges 

Minimum of 2 Months prior to 
implementation of proposed 
changes 

Health and Safety 
Management Plan 

Annual  Within one Month following the 
Commencement Date and two 
months prior to the start of 
each subsequent Contract 
Year 

55



 

Emergency Plan 

 

Annual Within one month following the 
Commencement Date and two 
Months prior to the start of 
each subsequent Contract 
Year 

 

5.1.6 The reports listed in Table 4 below are to be submitted by the Contractor to the Authority. 

Table 4: Reports 

 

Report Title 

 

Frequency Submission Date / 
Comments 

Monthly Performance 
Monitoring Report 

 

Monthly 1 week prior to the meeting 

Quarterly Performance 
Monitoring Report 

 

Quarterly Within two weeks of the end of 
each quarter 

Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee Update 

 

Twice each Contract Year 3 weeks prior to Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee 

Annual Service Report 

 

Annual Within one month of the start of 
each Contract Year 

Fire Risk Assessment 

 

Annual Prior to the Commencement 
Date and two Months prior to 
the start of each subsequent 
Contract Year 

Equipment Inventory 

 

Annual Within one month following the 
start of each Contract Year 

Licenses and Legislation 
Compliance Report 

 

Annual  Within one month following the 
start of each Contract Year 

Quest Plus Report 

 

Twice each Contract Year Within one week of receipt 

 

5.1.7 The monthly performance monitoring report that the Contractor is required to submit shall 

contain details of any failures to maintain the Performance Standards as set out in this 

Services Specification above and, in addition, must include the following contents in Table 5 

as a minimum: 

Table 5: Monthly Performance Monitoring Report 

 

Health & Safety / Accident Reporting – to include major accidents, incidents and near misses  

 

Facility Closures (Date & Reason) 

56



 

 

User Feedback  

 

Staffing & Training 

 

Site Maintenance & Service Development Update 

 

Monthly Sales 

 

Marketing & Promotions 

 

Overview of Events at Each Site 

 

 

 

5.1.8 In addition to the items covered above in the monthly performance monitoring report, the 

Quarterly Performance Monitoring Report that the Contractor is required to submit shall 

contain details of any failures to maintain Performance Standards as an overview of the 

period and must including the following contents in Table 6 as a minimum: 

 

Table 6: Quarterly Performance Monitoring Report 

 

Membership and Utilisation Data 

 

Operational Expenditure and Income 

 

Business Plan Progress Report 

 

Marketing Plan Progress Report  

 

57



 

 

58



 

 

 

Culture and Visitor Economy Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee 

9 March 2021 

Report of: Councillor Kelham Cooke 

  The Leader of the Council 

         
  

 

Corporate Plan Performance Indicators 

This paper sets out the proposed dashboards for reporting the Corporate Plan Key Performance 
Indicators relevant to the Culture and Visitor Economy Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 

 

 

Report Author 

Ben Russell, Performance Lead 

 
01476 406394 

  Ben.Russell@southkesteven.gov.uk  

 

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards: 

Administrative Administrative All Wards 

 

Reviewed by: Sam Fitt, Project Lead 19 February 2021 

Approved by: Ken Lyon, Assistant Chief Executive 24 February 2021 

Signed off by: Councillor Kelham Cooke, The Leader of the Council 1 March 2021 

 

Recommendation (s) to the decision maker (s) 

1. Approves the dashboards for future presentation. 

2. Recommends any further information which will support scrutiny of the agreed 
performance indicators. 

59

Agenda Item 10

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 

 
 

1 The Background to the Report 

1.1 The South Kesteven Corporate Plan 2020-23 was approved by Council on 1 October 

2020. The Corporate Plan sets out the strategic vision and key priorities of the Council.  

The Corporate Plan underpins the Council’s strategic activity and provides the 

performance framework for managing the delivery of the actions and priorities in the Plan. 

It is good practice for a public sector organisation seeking to deliver a wide set of aims and 

objectives to set out a Corporate Plan and regularly review the activity and achievements 

against it. 

1.2 It was agreed by Council that actions, key performance indicators (KPIs) and targets 

would be developed by the relevant overview and scrutiny committee, which would retain 

oversight of the performance management arrangements at a strategic level. These 

actions and indicators were presented to this committee and agreed on 17 November 

2020. 

1.3 The dashboards presented use the most recent data available relevant to the actions and 

KPIs. Explanatory notes for each are included in section 2 of this report. Milestones 

actions are presented as one section, outlining the current status and any actions ongoing 

to ensure they are achieved. A summary of the headline key performance indicators is 

provided, followed by more in depth and contextual detail presented under general 

themes.  

1.4 This is the first presentation of the performance report and is considered a work in 

progress as the Council seeks to improve the ways in which progress against the 

corporate objectives are monitored. Attempts have been made to ensure that the data 

provides a full picture of the Councils achievement against the reported indicators and 

provides suitable contextual information to enable thorough scrutiny. Members are 

however invited to make suggestions as to any additional information which would support 

their monitoring of performance in these areas. 

2 Explanatory notes 

2.1 At the time of writing two of the five milestone actions have been achieved, with the 

remaining three projected for completion by the end of August 2021.  

2.2 Data is available for five of nine key performance indicators. The target for many of these 

is to provide a baseline from which future performance will be judged, these are recorded 

as ‘On Target’ as data collection has commenced and is on track to be complete for April 

2021. In future presentations of the report ‘direction of travel’ information against this 

baseline data will also be included. 

2.3 Four further indicators have been listed as ‘No Rating’. Two of these (Healthy and Strong 

Communities, Action 11) refer to the Capital works programme for arts and cultural 

venues, which is currently in draft. Further detail on these indicators will provided in 

quarter 1 of 2021/22.  

2.4 Healthy and Strong Communities, Action 7 and Delivery of Growth and our Economy, 

Action 9 are both listed as ‘No Rating’ because data for 2020/21 is not yet available. 

2.5 Performance indicators specific to LeisureSK Ltd will be reported to the Culture and Visitor 

Economy Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 9 March 2021. These are separate to this 

report as they track performance of the leisure contract. Leisure performance in relation to 

the corporate plan objectives will be measured by the response to the Active Lives 

60



 

 
 

surveys. These are conducted by Sport England as a way to gauge the levels of sport and 

physical activity participation across the country. 

2.6 The Active Lives survey for children and young people does not include results for the 

district of South Kesteven. Instead the results are included within the county data. As a 

result, the benchmark is national rather than local. The adult survey is presented to a more 

local level and as such South Kesteven’s response is benchmarked against the East 

Midlands region. 

2.7 Market Data will be presented annually for 2019/20 and 2020/21. However quarterly 

updates will be provided for 2021/22 onwards. The data included in the current report 

includes the planned position (Budget) and the actual final position (Outturn).  

2.8 It is projected that markets will incur a cost in 2020/21. The Covid-19 pandemic imposed a 

number of restrictions on markets ability to operate, particularly around the distinction 

between essential and non-essential shopping. Despite this, all markets continued to 

operate, albeit with fewer traders than previously. It is anticipated that these will be 

welcomed back once national guidance allows. 

2.9 The number of visitor economy attractions engaged for 2020/21 will serve as a baseline to 

track growth over the three years of the corporate plan. The number of newly engaged 

attractions will be reported quarterly moving forward. 

2.10 The visitor spend within the district is provided using reports generated for South Kesteven 

using the STEAM methodology. This is a complex calculation including a variety of inputs 

such as visitor attraction numbers, tourist accommodation bed stock, events attendance, 

occupancy levels, accommodation tariffs, macroeconomic factors, visitor expenditure 

levels, transport use levels and tourism-specific economic multipliers. This is produced by 

an external organisation and widely accepted as reliable across the UK. 

3 Financial Implications  

3.1 The financial considerations where appropriate are referenced throughout this report. 

Financial Implications reviewed by: Alison Hall-Wright, Head of Finance 

4 Legal and Governance Implications  

4.1 Regular reporting on agreed performance dashboards is to be welcomed from a 

governance point of view, as it provides a transparent mechanism for reporting on 

performance. 

Legal Implications reviewed by: Shahin Ismail, Director of law and Governance 

5 Equality and Safeguarding Implications  

5.1 There are no issues relating to equality and diversity or safeguarding resulting from this 

report. Any issues that do arise relating to individual items will be addressed as required. 

6 Risk and Mitigation 

6.1 No significant risks have been identified. 

7 Community Safety Implications  

7.1 No significant implications have been identified. 

61



 

 
 

8 How will the recommendations support South Kesteven District 

Council’s declaration of a climate emergency? 

8.1 The contents of this report do not have a direct impact on the council’s carbon emissions 

or the carbon emissions of the wider district. 

9 Background Papers 

9.1 Agenda and Minutes from the Council meeting held 01 October 2020 (Item 27 – South 

Kesteven District Council Corporate Plan) 

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=261&MId=4037&Ver=

4  

9.2 Agenda and action notes from the Culture and Visitor Economy Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee meeting held on 17 November 2020 (Item 68 - Key Performance indicators 

(KPIs)) 

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=629&MId=4000  

10 Appendices 

10.1 Appendix 1 – Proposed Dashboards 

 

 

Report Timeline:  Date of Publication on Forward Plan (if 
required) 

N/A 

Previously Considered by: Culture and 
Visitor Economy Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 

17 November 2020 

Final Decision date   N/A 

 

62

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=261&MId=4037&Ver=4
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=261&MId=4037&Ver=4
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=629&MId=4000


/

Milestones Set

5
Milestones Reached

2
Milestones Summary

Priority Action
No.

Action Milestone Current
Status
(RAG)
 

Target
Date

Commentary & Ongoing Actions

Delivery of
growth of our
economy

Healthy and
Strong
communities

Healthy and
Strong
communities

Healthy and
Strong
communities

Healthy and
Strong
communities

9

6

6

7

7

Work with partners
and attractions, to
promote visitor
economy and increase
visitor spend in the
District, including the
adoption of a Tourism
Strategic Framework.
Adopt a new Cultural
Strategy for the
District, including the
local Arts, Events and
Festivals programme.

Adopt a new Cultural
Strategy for the
District, including the
local Arts, Events and
Festivals programme.

Develop and adopt a
Sport and Physical
Activity Strategy.

Develop and adopt a
Sport and Physical
Activity Strategy.

Adoption of Tourism
Strategic Framework
(Gross Value Added)

*COMPLETE* Adoption
of the culture strategy

*COMPLETE* KPIs and
actions to be agreed as
part of implementation
plan.

Adoption of the Sport &
Physical Activity
strategy, implementation
of actions and
achievement of
outcomes
Annual Customer
Satisfaction Survey
(new measure to be
developed as part of
Strategy)

Green

Green

Green

Orange

Orange

30
June
2021

31
March
2021

31
March
2021

31
August
2021

31
August
2021

The first draft of the Tourism Strategic Framework will be presented to Culture & Visitor Economy OSC on March
9th 2021. Feedback from this session will be used to revise the framework, and a final version is expected to be
approved by June 2021.

- Adopting the Cultural Strategy will be an ongoing process. 
- Early progress has included the creation of an SK Creative Artists' Network with meetings held once every eight
weeks or so. 
- An Arts Service Review was also commissioned in December 2020 and will report recommendations for future
delivery of the service. This will include the integration of Bourne Corn Exchange within the service area and a
review of the current Festival offer. 
- The creation of a Service Plan will prioritise the delivery of a range of actions to support the rollout of the
Cultural Strategy - promoting networking, partnerships and accessibility.
- The Service Plan for Arts and Cultural Services will review and refine a series of Strategic and Operational
KPI's in support of a focused response to the creation of a targeted implementation plan for 2021-22.
- The ongoing impact of Covid-19 will continue to affect the short/mid term recovery of the service. Longer term
planning will be subject to further uncertainties. These will, in turn, dictate achievable levels of customer
confidence that will create the environment necessary for the return to a full programme of activity. 
- Many events will still require reduced levels of engagement due to social distancing measures and other
restrictions imposed on the sector throughout the financial year.
Work has commenced to develop a draft strategy, however completion of this was delayed due to resource
pressures related to the set up of LeisureSK. Completion of the strategy is now anticipated by August 2021.

An annual survey takes place across all the leisure facilities.  Plans to introduce a non-user survey are being
explored to complement the development of the Sport and Physical Activity Strategy which is intended to be
complete by August 2021.

63

A
ppendix 1



/

Priority Action
No.

Action KPI Data Frequency Latest Data Value Target - 2020/21 Status

Healthy and Strong
communities

Healthy and Strong
communities

Healthy and Strong
communities

Healthy and Strong
communities

Healthy and Strong
communities
Healthy and Strong
communities
Delivery of growth
of our economy

Delivery of growth
of our economy

Delivery of growth
of our economy

6

5

7

7

11

11

9

9

11

Adopt a new Cultural Strategy for the District,
including the local Arts, Events and Festivals
programme.
Celebrate and enhance the rich history of the
District.

Develop and adopt a Sport and Physical Activity
strategy.

Develop and adopt a Sport and Physical Activity
strategy.

Improve and invest in the local arts & cultural
venues across the District.
Improve and invest in the local arts & cultural
venues across the District.
Increase in the amount of visitor spend in the
district. Development and adoption of a strategic
document that positions SKDC at the centre of its
Visior Economy. The document will and draw-on,
and support, the expertise of the existing VE sector,
and other agencies involved in its promotion.
Increase in the amount of visitor spend in the
district. Development and adoption of a strategic
document that positions SKDC at the centre of its
Visior Economy. The document will and draw-on,
and support, the expertise of the existing VE sector,
and other agencies involved in its promotion.
Work closely with markets across South Kesteven
and seek to maintain their viability.

Number of residents
engaged through the new
programme of activities
Number of residents
engaged through SK-
promoted cultural
activities
Results of active people
survey (Adults)

Results of active lives
survey (Children and
Young People)
Maintaining properties to
required standards
Value of capital works
carried out
Number of visitor
economy attractions
engaged

Increase in visitor
economy spend

Markets becoming cost
neutral to SKDC

Number of Residents
engaged through New
programme of activity.
Number of Residents
engaged through
existing programme of
activity.
Proportion of Active
Residents aged 16+ in
South Kesteven
Proportion of Active
Residents aged 5 - 16
in Lincolnshire
To Be Confirmed

To Be Confirmed

Baseline for Engaged
Visitor Economy
Attractions

Direct spend by visitors
to SKDC

Cost to South Kesteven
District Council to
deliver Markets in the
district.

Quarterly

Quarterly

6 Monthly

Annual

TBC

TBC

Annual

Annual

Annual

Q3 2020/21

Q3 2020/21

01/05/2020

2019/20

Not
Available
Not
Available
2020/21

2019

2019/20

56,500

23

58.83%

48.93%

N/A

N/A

46

£143,000,000

£61,093.29

Establish Baseline

Establish Baseline

Develop Target

Develop Target

Establish Baseline

Establish Baseline

30

£73,600,000

Continue
Delivering Markets

Green

Green

Green

N/A

N/A

N/A

Green

N/A

Green

KPI Summary 5
On Target (Green)

0
Attention Required (Amber)

0
Under Performing (Red)

4
No Rating

64



/

Lincolnshire Authorities Active Resident Proportions

0%

50%

100%

Lincoln North
Kesteven

South
Kesteven

Lincolnshire Boston West
Lindsey

East Lindsey South
Holland

62.53% 60.16% 58.83% 56.99% 56.97% 56.69% 53.61% 49.91%

28.65% 27.19% 28.14% 30.62% 29.20% 30.02% 34.13% 36.98%

Active Residents Fairly Active Residents Inactive Residents

May 2020
Latest Data (Adult Survey)

South Kesteven Active Resident Proportion

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

2016 November 2017 November 2018 November 2019 May 2019 November 2020 May

58.68%

58.83%

65.78%

58.56%

59.87% 61.12%

2019/20
Latest Data (Childrens Survey)

Action 7 of the Corporate Plan's 'Healthy and Strong communities' priority is to 
'Develop and adopt a Sport and Physical Activity Strategy'. This is supported by 
two Key Indicators, the results of the Active Lives survey (For Adults) and the 

results of the Active Lives survey (Children and Young People).

South Kesteven ranks 32 of 45 East 
Midlands Authorities (Includes County Level 

Authorities) for Active Residents aged 16+

Lincolnshire ranks 9 of 45 Active 
partnerships nationally for Active young 

people (aged 5 - 16)

Active Young People Proportion by Active Partnership

Oxfordshire

Wiltshire & Swindon

Northumberland

Somerset

Cumbria

Devon

Dorset

Birmingham

Lincolnshire

Cornwall and Isles of Scilly

Herefordshire and Worcesters…

Cheshire

58.39%

54.72%

53.45%

52.40%

52.24%

50.80%

50.06%

49.92%

48.93%

48.82%

48.43%

48.42%

65



/

Market Cost to South kesteven District Council in 2019/20

Bourne Market : £2,597.73

Grantham Market : £79,229.30

Stamford Market : -£20,733.74

© 2021 TomTom, © 2021 Microsoft Corporation© 2021 TomTom, © 2021 Microsoft Corporation

Latest Data Available

2019/20
Action 11 of the Corporate Plan's 'Delivery of growth of our 

economy' priority is to Work closely with markets across South 
Kesteven and seek to maintain their viability. Success in this 

regard will be measured against the following Key Perfomance 
Indicator : Markets becoming cost neutral to SKDC.

Costs of Market

£0.0M £0.1M

Grantham Market

Stamford Market

Bourne Market

£118,250.00

£116,850.00

£20,950.00

£128,867.91

£125,817.32

£18,155.26

Planned Costs Actual Costs

Market Income

-£0.2M -£0.1M £…

Bourne Market

Grantham Market

Stamford Market

-£18,800.00

-£66,900.00

-£172,800.00

-£15,557.53

-£49,638.61

-£146,551.06

Planned Income Actual Income

Planned Balance

-£2,450.00

Actual Balance

£61,093.29

Variance

£63,543.29

66

ms-pbi://www.bing.com/maps?cp=0~0&lvl=1&style=r&FORM=BMLOGO


/

Action 9 of the Corporate Plan's 'Delivery of growth of our economy' priority is to 'Increase the amount of visitor spend 
within the district'. Success is measured in the cash value of visitor spend along with the number of Visitor attractions 

engaged with and supported by Invest SK.

2019
Latest Visitor Spend Data

£148M
Direct Visitor Spend

Direct Visitor Spending In South Kesteven

£53M (36%)

£41M (28%)

£22M (14.67%)

£16M (10.67%)

£16M (10.67%)

Shopping Spend

Food & Drink Spend

Transport Spend

Accomodation Spend

Recreation Spend

£49M
Indirect & induced Visitor Spend

£197M
Total Visitor Spend

This data is extracted from the STEAM model, An
 independent and robust mechanism for 

approximating the broad economic impact of 
tourism in the UK

Visitor Spending In South Kesteven by Year

£0M

£50M

£100M

£150M

£200M

2018 2019

£142M £148M

£47M £49M

£189M
£197M

Direct Visitor Spend Indirect Visitor Spend

46
Visitor Attractions Engaged

This is the baseline number of visitor 
attractions engaged within the district. 
Over the lifecycle of these KPI's the 
ambition is to grow this number, and 

that growth will be reported to the 
Committee.

2020/21
latest Data (Attractions Engaged)

67



/

Action 5 of the Corporate Plan's 'Healthy and Strong communities' priority is to 
Celebrate and enhance the rich history of the District. Success in this will be 

measured by number of residents engaged through SK-promoted cultural activities.

Action 6 of the Corporate Plan's 'Healthy and Strong communities' priority is to 
Adopt a new Cultural Strategy for the District, including the local Arts, Events 

and Festivals programme. Success in this, In addition to the milestone 'Adopting 
a new Culture Strategy', will be measured by the number of residents engaged 

through the new programme of activities.

December 2020
Latest Data - Cultural Activities

December 2020
Latest Data - Cultural Activities

Value by Period

0K

50K

30 June 2020 30 September 2020 31 December 2020

31,245

66,063

56,500

Value by Period

0

50

30 June 2020 30 September 2020 31 December 2020

45

79

23

Venues reopened for limited stakeholder hires only from 7 September and 
closed again for the November Lockdown and did not reopen again before

 the end of Q3.
 Poetry Stone Event (23)

 Reporting (where relevant) will include: Classical Series, Music in Quiet 
Places, Outreach - LOV projects, Live & Local, Poetry Events Deepings 
Literary Festival, Arts Around Town (Stamford and Grantham), Exhibition 

programme, Cinema Programme, Workshop Programme, 
Gravity/Georgian/Deepings Literary Festivals

From 1 July 39 discrete events - Digital programme - participation (166), 
Digital programme - performance (23768), Facebook (42,100), SK 

Creatives' Network 1 meeting (29)

68



/

No information available.
 A five-year programme of capital works is in development and will commence from 1st April 2021, specification of building standards is included in this 

process.

Action 11 of the Corporate Plan's 'Healthy and Strong communities' priority is to Improve and invest in the local arts & cultural venues across 
the District. Success in this will be measured through the value of capital works spending and the Venue condition against SKDC property 

standards.

69



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Culture and Visitor Overview and Scrutiny Committee 2020/21 

WORK PROGRAMME 

 

MEMBERSHIP – 7 

Remit link - REMIT 

 

REPORT TITLE ISSUE PURPOSE 
ORIGINATED/COMMI

TTEE HISTORY 
DATE(S) 

CORPORATE/ 
PRIORITY 

18 May 2021, 10.00am 

Promoting the 
historical value of 
South Kesteven 

A short verbal presentation by Councillor 
Charmaine Morgan to explore the promotion 
of the historical value of South Kesteven, 
including the Spitalgate Heath archaeological 
finds.  
Clare Saunders (InvestSK Heritage) to 
contribute to the discussion. 
 

To feed into a potential 
future item on Grantham 
Museum and put forward 
any recommendations to 
Cabinet as necessary  
 

 
 
Chairman’s request 
 
 

Growth and our 
Economy/ Healthy 
and strong 
communities 

Visitor Economy – 
update of the effect 
on businesses 
during Covid-19  

To receive feedback from the Business 
Breakfast held by InvestSK and an update on 
how grants have been used to support 
businesses during the pandemic.  
Presenter: Jon Hinde, InvestSK 
 

To investigate the effects of 
Covid-19 on businesses and 
visitor economy 

Chairman’s request 
Growth and our 
economy 

POTENTIAL FUTURE ITEMS 

The role of 
volunteers in Arts 
Centres and how 
this has been 
impacted by Covid-
19  

 
Details TBC 
Presenter: Michael Cross 

Details TBC Chairman’s request 
Healthy 
and strong 
communities 

71

A
genda Item

 11



 

REMIT 

The remit of the Culture and Visitor Economy Overview and Scrutiny Committee will be to work alongside Cabinet Members to assist 

with the development of policy and to scrutinise decisions in respect of, but not limited to: 

• Arts 

• Heritage 

• Markets and Fairs 

• Sports 

• Visitor Economy 

 

 

 

 

72


	Agenda
	4 Action Notes from the meeting held on 5 January 2021
	5 Updates from the previous meeting
	9 LeisureSK Ltd Performance Reporting
	Appendix One - Leisure Specification

	10 Corporate Plan Performance Indicators
	Appendix 1 – Proposed Dashboards

	11 2020/2021 Work Programme

